3490

=1 rdal~diVirdn]

. PUB! IF SERVICE
' ‘ TS SION
6 1| STATE OF NEW YORK EXED - - ALBANY
3 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
2 2009APR27 PM 2: 18
3 Case 06-T-0650 - Application of New York Regional
Interconnect Inc. For a Certificate of Environmental
4 Compatibility and Public Need Pursuant to Article VII
for a High Voltage Direct Current Electric Transmission
5| Line Running Between National Grid's Edic Substation in )
the Town of Marcy, and Central Hudson Gas & Electric's '
6 | Rock Tavern Substation Located in the Town of New
: Windsor
7
8 Evidentiary Hearing
3 Empire State Plaza : |
9 19th Floor
Albany, New York '
10
March 31, 2009
11 : 8:30 a.m.
12
) m@k 13 .BEFORE: MICHELLE L. PHILLIPS,
‘ i Administrative Law Judge
- 14 ‘ \
|
15 |
JEFFREY STOCKHOLM,
16 Administrative Law Judge
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

. 3491



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

3491

(Exhibits 269 through 281 marked for
identification.)

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I call Case 06-T-0650,
Application of New York.Regional Interconnect, Inc. for
Certificate of Enviromnmental Compatibility and Public
Need.

Could we begin this morning with appearance
of Counsel.

MR. SINGER: Yes, Your Honor. For New York
Regional Interconnect, the law firm of Couch White, by
Leonard Singer, Garrett Bissell, and William McCarthy.

MR. KLUCSIK: For Communities Against
Regional Interconnect, Gilberti, Stinziano, Heintz &
Smith, P.C., by Brenda Collela and John Klucsik.

MR. BLOW: For the staff of the Department
of Public Service, Steven Blow, assistant counsel, and
Anthony Belsito, assistant counsel.

MS. STRAUS: For the New York Power
Authority, Sarah Barish-Straus and Mark Malone.

MR. LANIADO: On behalf of the Long Island
Power Authority, the law firm of Read and Laniado by Sam
Laniado.

MR. LITTLE: For the Department of

Environmental Conservation, William Little and David
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Sampson.

MR. RIBACK: For Consolidated Edison Company

of New York, Jeffrey L. Riback, assistant general

counsel.

MR. GLASSER: Central Hudson Gas & Electric

Corporation by Robert J. Glasser.

MR. SALTARELLI: For NYISO, Joseph
Saltarelli of Hunton & Williams.

MR. PATKA: Carl Patka of New York
Independent System Operator.

MS. GACH: And Karen Gach for the NYISO.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. I have one

preliminary question. And it's a -- it's a question I

meant to ask the witness -- CARI's witnesses yesterday

with regard to electromagnetic fields, particularly
magnetic fields as it is associated with the Nanotech
Center issue that we had some testimony on yesterday.

One of the questions that I thought about

after we, of course, released the witnesses, was whether

it would make a significant impact on the strength of
the magnetic fields if the cable were buried. And if
were buried, I understand that burial doesn't affect
magnetic fields, but the two cables would be buried

fairly close together.

it
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Just when I need Mr. Bucci, he's not here.
But my thought would be it's a couple of feet. 1I'm sure
the company has diagrams that -- thét would show the
distance between the two cables as they are buried.

First of all, let me ask: Does anybody
disagree with my assumption that those cables in close
proximity would have a significant dampening effect on
maénetic field?

Okay, nobody is going to question that.

.MR. KLUCSIK: Your Honor, I don't know that

I can confirm or challenge that proposition.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, okay, so that's a

neutral. I'll go with a neutral unless somebody can
tell me I'm wrong. I'm pretty sure I'm right about
this.

MR. KLUCSIK: 1It's beyond my technical
expertise.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I understand, but what I
was going to ask you was if you would take this
proposition to your witness and ask her, number one, am
I right? Does that significantly impact the magnetic
field by putting those conductors a few feet apart as
well as -- rather than tens of feet apart as they occur

on the pole? And if that's --
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MR. KLUCSIK: Is your question related to
the underground placement of the cables within a few
feet?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes. Yes. Yes. Yes.
That's the -- that's the foundation. The cables are

within a couple of feet, and I ask you to ask the

company at some point -- maybe they can give you a
precise distance -- and then ask your expert if that
would affect her numbers. And if so, how?

That is to say, whét would the distance
required be if the cables were underéround within a
couple of feet of each other?

And you can report the -- if you would,
report that back to the record. 2And then we'll decide
if we want to put that into evidence. And if so, how to
do that. It could be done by affidavit, but that
would -- that would require the consent of the parties.
Otherwise, we could call her back. I hate to do that
for one issue.

But, in any event, would you check that out
for me?

MR. KLUCSIK: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. BISSELL: Your Honor, just to clarify,

in Section E-3 of the application, Figures E-3.3.1-1 and
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E-3.3.1-2 do show the cross-section of buried cable, and

the distance between the two cables would be 36 inches.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you, Counsel, I
appreciate that.

Do we have any other matters preliminary?

MR. LANIADO: Yes, Your Honor. At some
point today I would like to discuss.the Lesser/Puga
testimony and the motion to strike that staff had made
and was supported by LIPA as well as Con Edison, and I
believe CARI. I'ﬁ not sure.

ﬁut yesterday there was a discussion of
having those witnesses come up on Thursday rather than

Friday, and discovery responses just came in late

vesterday, so I would like to have that discussion. And

it can be now or later, your choice.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, we're halfway into
it. Go ahead.

MR. LANIADO: Your Honor, you held staff's
motion to strike specific portions of the Lesser/Puga
testimony in abeyance pending the conduct of discovery.
And I forget offhand whether you wanted us to complete
cross-examination or you -- that we could renew it
before cross-examination. Well, discovery --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Your call on that.
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MR. LANIADO: Excuse me?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I said it's your call on
that.

MR. LANIADO: .Okay. Well, staff -- staff
issued its discovery, I believe, March 16th or
March 17th. LIPA sent out its.interrogatories
March 18th. We just got the responses last night or
late yesterday evening, and we are being asked now to
cross the witnesses on Thursday or on Friday.

And in many -- many instances, Counsel could
go forward even though they only have two or three days'
notice or have the information, but we have a unigue
situation here. And here we have a model -- a
simulation model on a very pivotal issue, conduction
cost savings, that has never been used in New York
State, at least before the Public Se;vice Commission.

Staff, in one of its interrogatories, asked
for the benchmarking, whether the -- the Aurora outputs
had been benchmarked. And in response to DPS 1283, NYRTI
did not provide that benchmarking and said that their
benchmarking is commercially sensitive and thus
considered confidential.

LIPA had asked for the inputs to the model,

and we were told that they were proprietary and that we
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didn't have a license to use Aurora. No one at LIPA has
ever used Aurora. So what we have is a model that no
one in this proceeding, other than one party, has access
to, and that's NYRI, to my knowledge.

The: question is, I believe that, yes, we
could probably poke around.their testimony and the
results of that modelling, but the -- the evidence
that's going to be presented in this record is not going
to be very probative. And I think it's highly
prejudicial to ask us to go forward with
cross-examination at all when we're dealing literally
with a black box.

We're being asked to learn about something
that -- well, first of all, we can't learn about it
because we're ﬁot being given the guts of the model and
we're being asked to cross on the fly.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I understand your points,
and I would suggest to you that this is not the time to
renew a motion to strike, and I will explain why.

Staff's allegation in its original motion,
which was joined by others, is that this study or
software program is a black box. You said it yourself.

There is no evidence in this record that

it's a black box other than the allegations. ©Now, I do
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understand that discovery responses -- discovery has
been undertaken subsequent to our ruling. I might
suggest it could have come earlier.

That point aside, I -- and I certainly do
not gquestion your statement on the record today about
what the answers to that discovery showed. However,
those answers are not in the record, and I-cannét base
-- I'm not in a position now to say anything more than I
said when I made the motion.

As the record develops, we can deal with the

issue. If it's truly a black box, it's likely -- and
the record shows that -- it's likely that I will strike

that. But, as I said, the evidence does not show at
this point in time that it's a black box and beyand
scrutiny.

I might suggest to you that one way that you
might show that is in your cross-examination, but that's
entirely up to you. That's your decision about how to
proceed. But at this point, assuming arguendo -- and I
don't actually think, Mr. Laniado, you said this. But
assuming arguendo, you asked me to reconsider the motion
at this time, that would be denied at this time without
prejudice to renewal.

MR. LANIADO: Your Honor, wouldn't the
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technicality of not having evidence in the record be
solved by simply marking the responses for
identification and showing the applicant's reéponse that
they would not disclose the model, the benchmarking,
either to staff or provide the model's inbuts to LIPA?

JUDGE éTOCKHOLM: The response to your
question could we mark the documents for identification
is yes. Whether the documents are then adequaée on --
for me to make a determination, I don't know, because I
haven't seen the documents.

MR. LANIADO: Well, I guess what I'm saying'
is I can hand them up to you later today. I can make
copies and we can mark them, and then we can have the
discussion later today.

But the -- but I guess the point is we are
being asked to proceed on Thursday, and I think that's
prejudicial having had the responses only for two days.

Now, I understand your point that maybe the
discovery could have been asked sooner; but a motion was
made, and I -- frankly, I think that's a judgment call
because there's nothing in the rules that requires
someone to go ahead and serve discovery while a motion
is pending.

MR. SINGER: Your Honor, can I respond to
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some of this.

MR. BLOW: I'd 1like to make a point before
Mr. Singer responds, if you don't mind, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM:- Go ahead, Mr. Blow.

MR. BLOW: My only point on this is when
Your Honor made the ruling that we should proceed by
discovery -- and obviously we didn't do that beforehand,
we were trying to understand other things in the
rebuttal and so on and so forth, and we just can't do
everything at one time, so...

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Understood. No derogation
intended.

MR. BLOW: Right. When Your Honor ruled
that we should proceed by discovery, we sent out a
discovery request on -- actually, it was the 18th. And
I'm not accusing the company of being untimely under the
rules, but -- the company was timely under the rules,

however, under the circumstances and given the potential

"prejudice and so on, and so forth, it would have seemed

appropriate for the company to -- and I asked, in fact,
that -- in my discovery, in the letter that I sent, the
transmittal letter -- that the company respond as soon
as possible, given the -- given your ruling of the 1éth.

And I assume -- I don't remember Mr. Laniado's letter,
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but I assume it said something similar.

In any case, the company took the full
day -- number of days ‘allowed under the rules and
provided some information, I will grant you that. But,
as Mr. Laniado said, basically told us that the guts of
the modelvare proprietary and there's no way we could
look at it.

So they could have said that on -- within a
couple of days of the -- of our discovery request, but
that would have permitted you to, Your Honor, to
consider a renewed motion to strike much earlier, and
obviously the company didn't want that to happen.

MR. SINGER: That's a mischaracterization.
You know, we are in hearings, just as everyone else is,
and we are trying to respond to multiple discovery
requests as these hearings go oﬁ.

In addition, the witnesses are -- they have
other responsibilities also. So we tried to get them
to, you know, respond as soon as possible, and
personally I think we got the responses -- to get the
responses out in ten days while we're sitting here
during hearings is, you know, it was difficult to do.
And, as I said, these are not the only discovery

requests that we're responding to.
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Just as LIPA and the staff say that they
didn't want to file their discovery sooner, I think

that's a similar situation to us being able to respond

with -- earlier than the ten-day period.
In addition to that, we haven't told -- we
answered all of staff's interrogatory requests. We

didn't tell them that the guts were proprietary. The
only request that we did not respond to was the request
by LIPA for the input files to the Aurora model .

I don't see how they could have made. any use
of them because they don't have a license to run Aurora.
So, you know, we responded to them that it wouldn't be
worthwhile to provide them the input files if they don't
have a license to run the model.

In addition, Mr. Laniado said that the
Aurora model was not benchmarked against anything. The
guestion was, had the Aurora model forecast ever been
benchmarked to GE MAPs forecasts, and the answer was
their -- the witnesses are not aware of any of that
benchmarking.

It wasn't a refusal to provide any
benchmarking. It was a response to their direct
question about whether the model had been benchmarked

against GE MAPs. So I don't see that as a refusal to
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provide any information with respect to benchmarking.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Isn't the Aurora program a
GE program?

MR. SINGER: No, it's not.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I thought it was. 1
thought it was also produced by GE.

MR. SINGER: No, I don't believe‘so. There
was a document that we put in the response to the
motions that indicated that the developers of Aurora
were working with GE MAPs on a joint venture to, I
believe, try to coordinate the two separate programs,
but it's a separate program.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Sounds like there ought to
have been Lenchmarking done somewhere, but in any event.

MR. LANIADO: Your Honor, can I just correct
something that Mr. Singer said. There were two
questions that staff posed. Actually, they posed a
number of questions, but with respect to the
benchmarking --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. Time out. I'm not
going to issue a ruling today striking or not striking.
I will take into -- I will have marked for

identification the responses that you made reference to,

Mr. Laniado.
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These witnesses are going to be on the
stand, in any event, regardless of what happens with
regard to this specific piece of their testimony, so I
think that we can go on.

But before anything -- before anything is
even possible, you have to mark those interrogatory
responses for identification. Then we're going to
proceed with cross-examination of this panel. Then
we're going to go from there.

In terms of cross-éxamination, I'm sorry,
but you have to do your best. The schedule is not
within my hands.

MR. SINGER: Can I just make one othgr point
with respect to this, and that is the witnesses are not
going to be available on Thursday. They'll be here
Friday as scheduled.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Friday as scheduled.
Okay. You have another evening.

MR. LANIADO: Well, Your Honor, don't --
aren't there witnesses coming up later in the schedule,
you know, a week or two from now? Meaning if there are
problems cross-examining them on Friday, could these
witnesses be returned to the witness stand?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, I mean, I could ask
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them to come back, but what is -- what is the schedule?
MR. SINGER: Dr. Lesser and Mr. Puga are
scheduled for Friday of this week. Monday the 6th is
Panel C and Mr. Hieronymus. I don't believe Lesser and
Puga were planning on staying around.
MR. LANIADO: ©No. No. I was -- I thought

we had hearings scheduled after the week of the 6th. Am

I --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes, we do.

MR. SINGﬁR: Those aren't any of our
witnesses.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Right. Oh, now 1I
understand what you're asking. You want to bring them
back.

MR. LANIADO: If we have to, or just
postpone them ab initio.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Why don't you mark the
exhibits and we'll consider it further.

MR. LANIADO: Thank you.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Mr. Laniado, do you have
copies right now, or do you want to do this latex?

MR. LANIADO: I'll have to do that later,
Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. That's fine.
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I think our next panel is NYISO.

STEVEN COREY and JOHN BUECHLER, after first
having been duly sworn, were examined and testified as
follows:

" JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Please be seated and give
your name to the reporter.

(Corey) Steven Corey.

{Buechler) And John Buechler.

MR. SALTARELLI: Thank you, Your Honor.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. SALTARELLI:

Q. Mr. Corey, have you submitted sworn written

direct testimony and rebuttal testimony in this

proceeding?
A. (Corey) I have.
Q. And have you sponsored exhibits in connection

with that'testimony which has been marked as SLC 1
thrdugh SLC 57?
A. (Corey) Yes.
Q. And do you have any corrections to your written
direct testimony or rebuttal testimony today?
A. (Corey) No.
MR. SALTARELLI: Okay. Your Honor, is it

the intent to have the witnesses testify sort of in
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tandem as a panel? I'm just not certain.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Our general rules with
regard to panels are that questions can be posed to the
panel. The panel can decide who to answer it. The two
panelists can talk to each other.

And if Counsel wants a specific answer from
a specific question, Counsel is entitled to get that,
although that doesn't preclude the other witness from
also providing information. That's generally how the
panels have run.

MR. SALTARELLI: Okay, Your Honor. Then

I'11 --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And you've identified -- I
apologize. I wasn't listening. You identified whose
testimony?

MR. SALTARELLI: Mr. Corey's testimony. And
I can also at this point just for convenience do the
same with Mr. Buechler.
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Please.
BY MR. SALTARELLI:
Q. Okay. Mr. Buechler, have you submitted sworn
written direct testimony in this proceeding?
A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. And have you sponsored exhibits in connection
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with your testimony which have been marked as JPB 1
through JPB 87

A. (Buechler) Yes, I have.

Q. And, Mr. Buechler, today do you have any

corrections with respect to your written direct

testimony?

A. {Buechler) One correction.
Q. Okay. Can you refer us to the page and line that

you're referring to?

A, (Buechler) Yes. In my direct testimony, page 31,
line 21.
Q. And can you read the statement that you're

referring to and the correction for the record.
A. (Buechler) All right. 1I'll read the full
sentence, beginning on line 20 through 22.

"As a participant in the NYISO's governance
process, NYRI is eligible to vote on the CARIS
report" -- CARIS, C-A-R-I-S -- "at the NYISO business
issues committee and management committee."

The correction is -- as corrected, the sentence
would read, "As a participant in the NYISO's governance
process, NYRI may become" -- strike "is" -- "eligible to
vote on the CARIS report," et cetera.

Q. Yes. Will you be submitting a corrected or an
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v

amended written testimony to that effect?
A. (Bgechler) Yes.
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: ©No, we don't need to do
that, Counselor.
MR. SALTARELLI: Okay.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: What we wanted to know

first was, was the testimony on the CD that you gave us
corrected?

MR. SALTARELLI: It is not, Your Honor. And
that's wh? I would -- I would submit a new CD.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes, if you could submit a
new CD, that would -- I realize that it's a pain in the
butt, but -- )

MR. SALTARELLI: Not a problem. But the
written testimony, it's not necessary?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: No. The written
testimony, we can make -- handwritten change is fine.

MR. SALTARELLI: Thank you.

BY MR. SALTARELLI:
Q. Mr. Buechler, other than the correction you just

testified about, is there any other corrections or
amendments to your testimony?

A. (Buechler) No, there is not.

MR. SALTARELLI: At this time, Your Honor,
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the witnesses are available for cross-examination.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: The prefiled testimony as

described by the witnesses will be copied into the
record as though given orally.

(The following is the prefiled direct and
rebuttal testimony of Steven Corey and the direct

testimony of John Buechler:)
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Case: 06-T-0650 STEVEN L. COREY

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
My name is Steven L. Corey. My business address is: New York Independent

System Operator, Inc. (“NYISO"), 10 Krey Blvd., Rensselaer, NY 12144.

WHAT IS YOUR CURRENT POSITION?

[ am the Manager of Interconnection Projects for the NYISO.

WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND?
I'hold a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the Clarkson
College of Technology (now Clarkson University), and a Master of Engineering

degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering, also from Clarkson.

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR PROFESSIONAL WORK EXPERIENCE.

I'have held the position of Manager of Interconnection Projects for three years. Prior
to that, I held the position of Manager of Transmission Planning for. the NYISO for
approximately six years, beginning when the NYISO first was established in
November 1999. For eight years prior to that, beginning in 1991, I held a comparable
position, Manager of Transmission Planning, with the New York Power Pool
(“"NYPP™), the predecessor to the NYISO. While Manager of Tran’smission Planning,
[also served as the NYPP, then NYISO, representative on the Northeast Power
Coordinating Council’s (“NPCC”) Task Force on System Studies from 1991 through
2005, and served as chairman of that group for the last six years of that period. I
Joined the NYPP in 1974, directly after my graduation from Clarkson. I held a
variety of tcchnical and management positions of increasing responsibility at the

NYPP (Analyst-Computer Applications 1974-1978. Senior Analyst-Computer
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Case: 06-T-0650

STEVEN L. COREY

Applications 1979, Supervisor of Computer Applications 1980-1985, Manager of

Operations Engineering 1985-1991, Manager of Transmission Planning 1991-1999).

WHAT ARE YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES AS MANAGER OF
INTERCONNECTION PROJECTS FOR THE NYISO?

As Manager of Interconnection Projects, I am responsible for oversceing the
administration of the NYISO's interconnection process and certain transmission

expansion studies.

My work includes various activities that support or affect these studies such as:

development of criteria, standards, guidelines and procedures; development and

application of various analytical tools; and coordination and development of various

models and databases. In carrying out this work, I participate on various committees
and groups within the NYISO, including the Transmission Planning Advisory

Subcommittee (“TPAS”) and the Operating Committee “‘oc).

WHAT EXPERIENCE DO YOU HAVE THAT RELATES TO THE NYISO
INTERCONNECTION PROCEDURES?

I have been involved in the development, implementation and administration of the
NYISO’s interconnection process since its inception. I was involved in the
development the NYISO's current procedures, including the Large Facility
Interconnection Procedures (“LFIP™) and Small Generator Interconnection
Procedures, which are contained in the NYISO's Open Access Transmission Tariff
("OATT")—as Attachments X and Z . respectively. [ also have been involved in

each step of the development, implementation and administration of Attachment S of
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the OATT, the Rules to Allocate Responsibility for the Cost of New Interconnection

Facilities (“Attachment S™)."

I was also involved in the development of the Transmission Expansion and
Interconnection sections of the NYISO OATT. In 2000, I was involved in the
development and writing of the NYISO System Reliability Impact Study (“SRIS™)

. . 2
Criteria and Procedures.”

['am the primary NYISO staff member on TPAS. This stakeholder group has primary
responsibility for assisting NYISO Staff regarding the implementation of the
NYISO’s interconnection procedures. I often present study reports, prdposals and
recommendations to the NYISO OC on behalf of TPAS, and I have often presented
the NYISO staff position on interconnection and cost allocation matters to the OC,

Business [ssues Committee, Management Committee, and Board of Directors.

YOU HAVE MENTIONED A NUMBER OF COMMITTEES. PLEASE .
BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE NYISO OPERATING COMMITTEE AND TPAS.
The NYISO OC is one of the three primary committees that participate in the NYISO
governance. The OC membership includes representatives from all five stakeholder
sectors (Generation Owners, Transmission Owners, Other Suppliers, End Use
Consumer. and Public Power), and committee decisions are made through the FERC-
approved weighted voting process. Under that voting process. the OC must approve a

motion by at least a vote of 58% for a motion to pass. The OC is responsible for

Attachments S and X of the NYISO OATT are submitted herewith as Exhibit — (SLC-1) and Exhibit __
(SLC-2). respectively.
The SRIS Criteria and Procedures are submitted herewith as Exhibit _(SLC-3).
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operational and reliability related matters, which include administration and approval
of certain interconnection study scopes and studies and procedures rclated to
proposed projects. Specifically, the OC has approval authority for SRISs and the

Class Year Interconnection Facilities Studies (“Class Year Study™).

The TPAS is one of the subcommittees that reports to the OC. TPAS reviews and
comments on transmission and interconnection-related studies and assessments
performed by the NYISO staff, including SRISs and Class Year Studies. Like other
subcommittees, working groups and task forces of the NYISO, the TPAS functions in
a less formal manner than the primary committees with decision making by
consensus. Also. like the other subcommittees and working groups, the TPAS does
not have formal approval authority in most matters. Rather, the role of TPAS is to

report and make recommendations for action to the OC.

ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU PROVIDING TESTIMONY IN THIS
PROCEEDING?

I 'am providing testimony on behalf of the NYISO.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

The purpose of my testimony is threefold. First, I will describe the NYISO's
interconnection study process. Second, I will describe NYRI's status in the NYISO's
interconnection study process. Finally, I will summarize the conclusions of NYRI's
most recently completed interconnection study. Unless stated otherwise in my

testimony, capitalized terms have the meanings contained in the NYISO's OATT, in

3515
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Attachments S or X to the OATT. or in the NYISO Market Adminjstration and

Control Area Services Tariff (“Services Tariff”).

CAN YOU PLEASE DESCRIBE THE NYISO’S INTERCONNECTION
STUDY PROCESS?

The NYISO's interconnection processes focus on whether and how a new facility can
reliability interconnect to the New York State Transmission System. There are up to
three interconnection studies required for a proposed project under the LFIP: the
Interconnection Feasibility Study, the SRIS, and the Class Year Study. These studies
evaluate, with an increasing level of detail, the electrical impa.ct of the proposed
project on the transmission sysleﬁ. The studies also provide information regarding
any additional facilities that are needed for the reliable interconnection of the project
under the NYISO’s Minimum Interconnection Standard. These facilities include the
Transmission Owner’s Attachment Facilities, which are the facilities owned by the .
Transmission Owner that connect the proposed project to the transmission system,
and System Upgrade Facilities, which are required upgrades to the existing,
integrated transmission system. Each interconnection study bases its analysis on a
defined set of base cases that represent snapshots of the system, both before and after
the proposed project, that are determined at the commencement of that study. The
first study performed after a Developer submits an Interconnection Request is usually
the Interconnection Feasibility Study. A Developer may forego an Interconnection
Feasibility Study only if the NYISO, Developer and connecting Transmission Owner
all agree. Power flow and short circuit analyses are performed in this study. which

provides a preliminary evaluation of the feasibility of the proposed interconnection to
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the transmission system.” This study provides a preliminary identification of
Transmission Owner’s Attachment Facilities and System Upgrade Facilities, as well

as a good faith cost estimate of those facilities.

Next, upon the completion of the Interconnection Feasibility Study, the NYISO
develops a scope for the SRIS. The SRIS scope for each project must be approved by

the OC. In the SRIS, power flow, short circuit and stabilityi analyses are performed to

“evaluate in further detail the impact of the proposed project on the reliability of the

transmission system.” For projects larger than 80 megawatts (“MW”) in size, the
study evaluates the impact of the proposed project on interface transfer limits based
on the most limiting of the thermal. voltage, and stability criteria.> The SRIS also
identifies the Transmission Owner’s Attachment Facilities and System Upgrade

Facilities and provides a good faith cost estimate of those facilitics.

Finally, following the completion and approval of the SRIS, the NYISO pefforms an
Interconnection Facilities Stley for a Class Year® of proposed projects, known as the
Class Year Study. Projects must meet two milestones for entry into a Class Year:
NYISO Operating Committee approval of the SRIS and a “regulatory” milestone.’
This study is the most detailed and comprehensive of the three interconnection studies
and reevaluates system performance using base case assumptions updated from those

used in the SRIS. Through this study, the NYISO identifies the System Upgrade

Y]

Sect. 6.2 of Attachment X.

Section 7.3 of Attachment X.

SRIS Procedures at |.

The Class Year. as defined in Attachment S to the OATT. is a group of proposed projects included in any
particular Annual Transmission Reliability Assessment.

The regulatory milestone required depends on the type of project proposed. For a transmission project
subject to Article VII. the applicable milestone is the notice that the submitted application is complete
under Article VII. Attachment S at Fourth Revised Sheet No. 674.
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Facilities required to interconnect reliably the entire group of Class Year projects and
allocates the cost of those upgrades among the Class Year projects based on the pro
rata impact of each project. Upon completion of this study, each Developer is
obligated to make a financial commitment related to the System Upgrade Facilities
required for its project in order to move forward in the interconnection process.
Under the LFIP and Attachment S, Developers are responsible for the full cost of
Attachment Facilities, as well as the project’s allocated share of the cost of System

Upgrade Facilities.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE MINIMUM .INTERCONNECTION STANDARD.
Under this standard, proposed projects are evqluatéd to determine whether and how
they can interconnect with the transmission system in compliance with relevant
reliability standards. These standards include, but are not limited to, New York State
Reliability Counsel (“NYSRC”) Reliability Rules; North American Electric
Reliability Corporation (*“NERC”) Planning Standards, and NPCC criteria. It is
important to note that under the Minimum Interconnection Standard a potentially
adverse reliability impact that can be *managed through the normal operating
procedures of the NYISO and/or [connecting Transmission Owner] will not be
identified as a degradation of system reliability or noncompliance with the NERC,
NPCC. or NYSRC reliability standards.”® If the adverse reliability impact cannot be
managed through normal operating procedures, a System Upgrade Facility will
generally be identified to mitigate the adverse impact. Under the Minimum

Interconnection Standard, only reliability impacts are evaluated: interconnection

8

SRIS Criteria and Procedures at 4.
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studies, under the provisions of the NYISO Tariff, do not assess the economic

impacts of a proposed project.

WHAT IS NYRI'S STATUS IN THE NYISO’S INTERCONNECTION STUDY
PROCESS?

NYRI submitted an Interconnection Request under the LFIP on May 13, 2005. The
NYISO assigned NYRI Queue Position 191. After NYRI submitted its
Interconnection Request, a Interconnection Feasibility Study was performed and
completed on June 22, 2006. On September 14, 2006, the OC approved the study

scope for the NYRI SRIS pursuant to Section 7.3 of Attachment X of the OATT.

The NYRI SRIS was conducted, and NYISO staff recommended approval of the

SRIS to the appropriate NYISO stakcholder groups, including TPAS and the OC.

On May 22, 2008, the OC denied approval of the NYRI SRIS by a vote of 53.55%
(just short of the 58% vote required for approval). On May 30, 2008, NYRI appealed
the OC’s denial of the NYRI SRIS to the Management Committee and requested that
the Management Committee overturn the OC’s decision, thereby approving the NYRI
SRIS. The NYISO determined that NYRI did not have proper standing to appeal the
decision as it was not at the time a member of the Management Committee. Thus,
NYISO exercised its right to appeal the OC's denial to the Management Committee

in order to afford a full vetting of the NYRI SRIS through the NYISO governance
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process. 9 On June 27, 2008, the Management Committee approved the NYRI SRIS

by a vote of 84.25%.

Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc. and Orange and Rockland Utilities
appealed the Management Committee’s decision to approve the NYRI SRIS to the
"NYISO Board of Directors (“the Appeal”). On August 27, 2008, the NYISO Board

denied the Appeal, upholding the approval of the NYRI SRIS."

NYRI has not yet commenced a Class Year Study to determine the exact
configuration of system changes that will be needed to interconnect its proposed new
transmission line. NYRI is qualified to become a member of Class Year 2009, the

study for which is scheduled to commence on March I, 2009.

WHAT ARE THE CONCLUSIONS OF THE NYRI SRIS?

The conclusions of the NYRI SRIS are discussed in detail within that study report. 1
would note that the overall conclusion of the SRIS is that NYRI meets the NYISO
Minimum Interconnection Standard and can be interconnected and operated within all
applicable NERC, NPCC, and NYSRC reliability criteria. Below, I will summarize
the SRIS’s other primary conclusions:

1. Changes were made to the NYRI project to include upgrades at both the

northern and southern interconnecting substations as a result of this study.

™)

The estimated cost of the System Upgrade Facilities and time to construct

were determined to be $12,700,000 and 24 months for the north (National

? Section 7.03 of the ISO Agreement gives the right of appealing an action of the Management
Commitiee to “any party on the Management Committee and the ISO Representative.”

" The NYISO's Board of Directors' Decision is submitted herewith as Exhibit __(SLC-4).

10
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Grid) end, and $26,115,000 and 36 months for the south (Central Hudson Gas
and Electric Corp.) end.

Power flow analysis identified that NYRI at full output would result in post-
contingency overloads on both the 345 kV and 138 kV systems near the
southern end of NYRI under the initial base case conditions. However,
further analysis determined that the overload on the 345 kV system could be
mitigated by a redispatch of generation in the case, with generation reductions
at the Roseton and Danskammer plants. The 138 kV system overloads in the
Shoemaker-Chester-Sugarloaf area were determined to be pre-existing, but
exacerbated by NYRI, so upgrades of selected transmission facilities in that
area may be necessary. This need will be determined in the Class Year Study:
Post-contingency overloads were also identified in the areas to the north and
west of the northern end of NYRI under the initial assumed base case
conditions, but those overloacis can be readily mitigated by a redispatch of
generation in those areas.

NYRI includes equipment and/or upgrades at both ends that would mitigate
any potential adverse voltage impacts of the project.

Stability analysis indicated that the system was stable for the design criteria
contingencies tested. A clearing time assessment indicated that NYRI did not
affect the critical clearing time at the southern end, but appeared to reduce the
critical clearing time from 12 cycles to 7 cycles at the northern end. It is
recommended that National Grid evaluate this with regard to the capabilities

of the protection in the area in the Class Year Study.

11
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7. Short circuit analysis indicates that NYRI would not cause lowest breaker
ratings to be exceeded within the study area.

8. Transfer limit analysis indicated that, for summer peak conditions, NYRI
resulted in normal and emergency limits for Total East, UPNY-SENY, and
Volney East increasing by approximately 1,200 MW (the size of the project).
The Moses South interface emergency limit increased by about 350 MW and
UPNY-ConEd normal and emergency limits increased by a small amount.
NYRTI's impact on all other interfaces was negligible.

9. The NYISO w.ill need to have operational control over the NYRI project so
that the NYISO can detiermine the maximum safe level of output as necessary
to avoid any adverse impact of the project on the reliability of the New York
State Transmission System, consistent with standard NYISO and applicable

Transmission Owner operating procedures and practices.

The SRIS report also indicates that: (1) NYRI and associated interconn&tion
facilities will be designed in accordance with all the Applicable Reliability Standards;
(2) any potential equipment overduty, low voltage, or thermal overload conditions
will be re-evaluated, identified and mitigated prior to interconnection or during the
Class Year Study. whichever comes first: and (3) deliverability standards. if any,
applicable to NYRI will be as deterr.nined in FERC Docket Nos. ER04-449-003,

ER04-449-007. and ER04-449-008.

12
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Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY AT THIS TIME?

A. Yes, it does.

STEVEN L. COREY

Fem, D Cny

Steven L. Corey

Sworn to before me this 9" day of January,
2009 in the City of Rensselaer, County of
Rensselaer, New York:

' Ffok

Carl F. Patka
Notary Public
AFFIX SEAL:

CARL F. PATKA
Notary Public - State of New York
No. 4962209
Qualified in Albany County
My Commission Expires Feb. 12, 2010

{
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> e PR

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is Steven L. Corey. My business address is: New York Independent
System Operator, Inc. (“NYISO”), 10 Krey Blvd., Rensselaer, NY 12144,
HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED IN THIS PROCEEDING?

Yes.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to respond to certain issues raised in the
prepared testimony submitted by Michael Forte in this proceeding on behalf of
Consolidated Edison Company of New York, Inc. (“Con Edison™).

DO YOU AGREE WITH MR. FORTE’S STATEMENT (AT 12) THAT
DATA USED IN THE NYRI SRIS WAS “AS OLD AS FIVE YEARS?”

No. The base cases utilized for the NYRI SRIS were based on the 2005 FERC
715 power flow cases, updated to reflect projects above NYRI in the
interconnection queue and other updates provided by the Transmission Owners.
And, since the NYRI SRIS base cases were prepared by the NYISO and provided
to NYRI’s consultant in September 2006, it is unclear how the data in those cases
could be considered five years old.

MR. FORTE (AT 12) IDENTIFIES THE CAPACITOR BANK AT
MILLWOOD AS AN EXAMPLE OF A RECENT CHANGE TO THE NEW
YORK STATE SYSTEM. WAS THE CAPACITOR BANK AT
MILLWOOD PROPERLY EXCLUDED FROM THE NYRI SRIS BASE

CASES?
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A.

STEVEN L. COREY

Yes. The SRIS study scope for the NYRI project was approved by the NYISO
Operating Committee in September 2006. The NYISO’s records indicate that it
provided the base cases to NYRI's consultant to perform the SRIS analysis on
September 28, 2006. The Millwood capacitor bank is actually associated with the
Athens Special Protection System (“SPS”) that was studied through a System

Impact Study (“SIS™). The study scope for that SIS was approved by the NYISO

Operating Committee in October of 2006. Also, the Millwood capacitor bank was

not included as part of the initial Athens SPS project, but was later identified
during the course of the Athens SIS. The Athens SIS was approved by the
Operating Committee in January 2007. The NYISO’s practice for transmission
projects that result from an SIS requesl,'such as the Athens SIS, is to consider
modeling the project for SRISs commenced only afier the Operating Committee
has approved the SIS. Tﬁerefore, the Millwood capacitor bank was properly
excluded from the NYRI SRIS base cases.

WOULD THE INCLUSION OF THE CAPACITOR BANK AT
MILLWOOD IN THE NYRI SRIS BASE CASE HAVE ALTERED THE
CONCLUSIONS OF THAT STUDY?

No. Even if the Millwood capacitor bank was modeled in the NYRI SRIS base
case, the conclusions of that study would not have been altered. The NYISO
conducted an internal \analysis to evaluate the potential impact of this and several
other claims asserted by Con Edison in its Notice of Appeal to the NYISO Board
of Directors concerning the approval of the NYRI SRIS. While the NYISO did

not agree with all the claims raised by Con Edison in its Notice of Appcal, the

3526
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1 internal analysis was performed making the changes to the base case suggested by
2 Con Edison. The results of this analysis show that the UPNY-ConEd voltage
3 limit would be increased by about 200 megawatts (“MW?), but would remain the
4 controlling limit under the modified study assumptions.' Additionally, even if the
5 thermal limit were the controlling limit, under the Minimum lnierconncction
6 Standard, the 500 MW impact of the NYRI project on the thermal limit would not
7 have been identified as an adverse reliability impact because the potential adverse
8 - reliability impact indicated by the approximately S00 MW reduction in the
9 UPNY-ConEd thermal limit can be managed through the normal operating

10 proccdures of the NYISO. Please refer to my direct testimony (at 8) for a

11 discussion of the Minimum Interconnection Standard.

‘ 1z Q. MR. FORTE MAKES A STATEMENT CONCERNING THE

13 OPTIMIZATION OF TRANSFERS (AT 13). DO THE NYISO'S SRIS
14 PROCEDURES REQUIRE THE OPTIMIZATION OF TRANSFERS IN
15 ORDER TO MAXIMIZE TRANSFER LIMITS?

16 A, No. Nothing in the NYISO’s SRIS procedures requires that the transfers be

17 optimized.

. * The NYISO’s internal summary of this analysis is submitted herewith as Exhibit __ (SLC-5).
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Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR REBUTTAL TESTIMONY?

A. Yes. It does.

éﬁ:&\i.{-’)wy.
-

Steven L. Corey

Sworn to before me this 2" déy of March,
2009 in the City of Rensselaer, County of
Rensselaer, New York:

Wi A e

Diane Egan g
Notary Public DIANE L. EGAN
AFFIX SEAL: Notary Public. State of New York

Qualified in Schenectady County
No. 4824890
Commission Expires March 21, 20 _/S’
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PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.

My name is John P. Buechler. My business address is: 6 North Candlewood Path,

Dix Hills, NY, 11746

WHAT IS YOUR CURRENT POSITION?
I am President of John P. Buechler Consulting, Inc. and currently serving, under

contract, as Executive Regulatory Policy Advisor to the New York Independent

System Operator, Inc. (NYISO).

WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND?
I hold a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering from Manhattan College and a

Master of Science degree in Management, from the Polytechnic Institute of New

York.

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR PROFESSIONAL WORK EXPERIENCE.

I have over 40 years of experience in the electric power industry, with responsibilities
for management of both engineering and planning organizations. For the past eight
years, I have been serving, under contract, as Executive Regulatory Policy Advisor to
the NYISO. During that time, from December 1999 through January 2004, I was
employed by KEMA Consulting as Senior Executive Consultant with responsibility
for restructuring and regulatory issues impacting the electric power industry,
including Independent System Operator (ISO), Regional Transmission Operator
(RTO) and Transco development. From May 1998 through December 1999, 1 was
the Project Managing Director of the NYISO Project for the Member Systems of the

New York Power Pool (NYPP), in which capacity my responsibilities included the

3530



10.

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Case: 06-T-0650

JOHN P. BUECHLER

day-to-day management of all aspects of the transformation of the NYPP into the
NYISO. In that capacity, I also participated actively in the development of various
filings at the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), including the tariffs

and organic agreements that are now the NYISO’s governing documents.

Prior to my responsibilities to the NYISO, I was Manager of Integrated Resource
Planning at Long Island Lighting Company (LILCO) where I was responsible for
federal and state regulatory developments concerning open access, competition and
restructuring. I had a lead role in the negotiations leading to the acquisition of
LILCO’s electric transmission and distribution systems and other assets by the Long
Island Power Authority as a precursor to the merger of LILCO and Brooklyn Union

Gas into the KeySpan Corporation.

In my 30 year career with LILCO, I held various managerial positions, principally in
areas associated with Corporate and Strategic Planning and in the Office of
Engineering. [ participated on numerous Committees at the NYPP in the areas of
planning, operations and the environment and have chaired various NYPP groups
responsible for the development of joint positions before regulatory agencies. I also
served as LILCO’s representative at the Northeast Power Coordinating Council
(NPCC), a member of the Edison Electric Institute’s (EEI) Transmission Policy Task
Force, and a member of the Power Systems Planning and Operations Advisory

Committee of the Electric Power Research Institute (EPRI).
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Q.

WHAT ARE YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES AS EXECUTIVE REGULATORY
POLICY ADVISOR FOR THE NYISO?

In my capaci£y as Executive Regulatory Policy Advisor for the NYISO, I provide
advice and analysis to tﬁc NYISO’s President and Chief Executive Officer, other
Officers of the NYISO and staff who report to those Officers, and Members of the
Board of Directors on key federal and state regulatory issues, especially regarding
planning, operations and competitive markets, as well as tariff, market, and ra‘te
design issues. During my consulting tenure with the NYISO, I also served as the first

Director of Regulatory Affairs from 2000 through 2002 and as Acting Vice President

of Market Structures during 2005 and 2006.

WHAT EXPERIENCE DO YOU HAVE THAT RELATES TO THE NYISO’S
COMPREHENSIVE SYSTEM PLANNING PROCESS?

During my tenure with LILCO, from 1983 through 1998, I held various management .
positions with planning responsibilities for the electric power system on Long Island,
including long-range planning for the generation, transmission and distribution
systems as well as the administration of the company’s Research & Development
program for both the electric and gas systems. I was responsible for the development
and filing of LILCO’s Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) in response to
FERC Order 888, and with the development, filing and support of LILCQO'’s Electric

Integrated Resource Plans with the New York State Public Service Commission

(PSC).

At the NYISO, I have been involved in the development and implementation of the

NYISO’s planning processes since its inception. [ was responsible for leading the

35632
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development of the NYISO response to FERC Order 2000, which included the
development of the initial proposal for a bulk electric system planning process.
During 2003 and 2004, I led the NYISO’s collaborative stakeholder process with the
Electric System Planning Working Group to develop and file the initial
Comprehensive Reliability Planning Process (CRPP) for approval with FERC. The
CRPP has been the basis for bulk power system reliability planning in New York for
the past four years. Also during that same period, I was responsible for the
development and filing of the NYISO’s response to FERC Order 2003, which defines
the requirements for the NYISO’s interconnection process. Upon the issuance of
FERC Order 890, which, among other things, established formal requirements for a
regional bulk power system planning process for all transmission providers, I had the
lead responsibility, working through tﬁe NYISO stakeholder process, for the
development of NYISO’s compliance ﬁlihgs. Those filings expaﬁded the NYISO
CRPP planning processes to incorporate the Transmission Owners’ Local |
Transmission Planning Process, to include provisions for cost allocation and cost
recovery for projects needed for reliability, and to establish an economic planning
process to analyze projects to relieve congestion on the transmission system. That
{iling was conditionally approved by FERC on October 16, 2008; I am currently
assisting the NYISO in the development of the detailed procedures rcquired to

implement the new economic planning process under Order 890.
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Q.

HAVE YOU DEVELOPED AND PROVIDED TESTIMONY IN PREVIOUS
REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS?

Yes. An integral part of my role as Manager of Facilities Planning and later,
Integrated Resource Planning, for LILCO was to develop, recommend and support
LILCO pqlicy positions in numero.us state and federal regulatory proceedings. My
responsibiiitiés included the preparation of extensive analyses, including detailed
engineering and economic analyses, as well as the preparation and provision of
testimony to support LILCO’s positions. Further, I was responsible for the
preparation and support of testimony in numerous cases before the New York State
Public Service Commission, including: various LILCO Electric Rate Cases;
Shoreham Alternative Plan; LILCO Rate Moderation Plan; Shoreham, Jamesport,
New Haven, and Nine Mile Point Unit No. 2 pru&ence proceedings; Competitive
Opportunities Proceeding; Load Pockets/Market Power proceeding; Retail Access;
Integrated Resource Planning (Electric & Gas); Conservation/Leagt Cost Planning;
Generation Capacity Bidding; Long Run Avoided Costs/Short Run Avoided Costs;

Environmental Externalities; Renewable Resources and Transmission Wheeling.

Before the FERC, I have developed strategy, policy recommendations and analyses to

support LILCO, NYPP and industry positions involving various open access and

industry restructuring issues, including: Open Access Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking (NOPR) and Order 888; Open Access Tariff; Transmission Pricing;
Stranded Costs; Jurisdictional Issues re: Wholesale and Retail Access; Section
2117212 Wheeling Issues; Power Pooling/ ISOs; NYISO tariff filings. I presented

testimony before the FERC, on behalf of the NYISO, in support of the recovery of
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NYISO start-up costs (Docketé ER99-4235-000 and ER00-798-000) as well as in

2 support of the conformance of certain pre-existing wheeling agreements to the
3 proﬁsions of the NYISO Tariff (Docket Nos. ER9-1523-011, OA 97-270-010 and
4 ER97-4234-008).

s Q. ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU PROVIDING TESTIMONY IN THIS

6 PROCEEDING?

7 A I am providing testimony on behalf of the NYISO.

s Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

9 A The purpose of my testimony is three-fold. First, I will provide an overview of the

10 NYISO’s Comprehensive System Planning Process (CSPP). Second, I will describe
‘ 11 the NYISO’s CRPP and the treatment of NYRI’s submissions in the CRPP. My

12 testimony oﬁ the CRPP will have three parts: (a) initially7 the testimony will discuss

13 the NYISO’s CRPP in general terms; (b) then I will descfibe the NYISO’s analysis of

14 the NYRI project as an Alternative Regulated Solution in the 2007 and 2008

15 Comprehensive Reliability Plans, and the current status of the NYRI project in the

16 NYISO’s CRPP; and (c) finally, the testimony will describe the sequence of actions

17 that would have to occur, including selection and certification by thé Public Service

18 Commission. for the NYRI project to receive regulated cost recovery as a regulated

19 reliability solution under the NYISO’s CRPP. As the third component of my

20 testimony, I will describe the NYISO’s Congestion Analysis and Resource

21 Integration Study (CARIS) that is beginning in 2009, and how NYRI should

22 participate in that economic planning process if NYRI desires cost recovery under the

. 23 NYISO’s economic planning process. There will be three sub-parts to this testimony.
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Initially, I will describe the CARIS process that was .approved by the FERC on
October 16, 2008. Then I will describe how the NYISO is implementing that process.
Lastly, I will describe how NYRI, if it desires cost recovery undér the NYISO’s
economic planning process, should participate in developing the CARIS process, in
the first CARIS, and offer its project as a solution to transmission congestion to seek
regulated cost recovery under the economic cost allocation provisions of the
NYISO’s Tariff. Unless stated otherwise in my testimony, capitalized terms have the
meanings contained in the NYISO’s OATT, in Attachment Y to the OATT, or in the

NYISO Market Administration and Control Area Services Tariff (Services Tariff).

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR TESTIMONY.

The NYISO has considered NYRI’s project in its CRPP as an Alternative Regulated
Solution in the 2007 and 2008 CRPPs. As an alternative regulated solution, the |
NYRI project could be selected to meet a reliability need under the CRPP only if five
things happen: (1) the NYISO has determined that there are insufficient market-
based solutions to meet that need and has called upon a Responsible TO to proceed
with developing its regulated backstop solution; (2) the Responsible Transmission
Owner(s) file fo'r approval of their reliability backstop solution project; (3) NYRI files
its project with the PSC to be considered as an alternative to the Responsible
Transmission Owner(s)’ backstop solution project: (4) the NYISO has determined
that the NYRI project will meet the identified reliability need; and (5) the PSC selects
NYRI's project to be built instead of the Transmission Owners" project. Thus, the
PSC and not the NYISO will ultimately determine whether the NYRI project will

move forward pursuant to the New York Public Service Law. If all of the above
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1 events occurred, including the PSC’s selection of the NYRI project to proceed instead

;=]

of the TO's regulated backstop solution, the NYRI project then would be eligible for

"3 cost recovery under the NYISO’s tariff. To date, the NYISO has not determined that
4 there is a need for a regulated backstop project because there have been sufficient
j 5 market-based S(‘)lultions to meet reliability needs. Therefore, NYRI's alternative
j 6 regulated solution has not been placed before the PSC for consideration as a solution
7 to a reliability need.
8 The FERC has conditionally approved the CARIS as the NYISO’s economic
9 planning process to address transmission congestion on the New York bulk power
i 10 system. The NYISO will begin to implement the CARIS in 2009. The NYISO’s
11 economic planning process represents an apprbpriate avenue available to NYRI to
. 12 request an analysis of the costs and benefits of its proposed transmission facility and a
‘ 13 determination of whether the project would be eligible to receive regulated cost
% 14 recovery under the NYISO tariff. In order for NYRI to obtain cost recovery under the
‘ 15 economic planning provisions of the NYISO’s tariff, NYRI must proceed through the
16 NYISO's economic planning process.
|

17 Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE NYISO’S COMPREHENSIVE SYSTEM

18 PLANNING PROCESS.

19 Al The NYISO conducts long-term reliability and economic planning for the New York

20 bulk power system pursuant to regulations and orders adopted by the FERC. The

| 21 NYISO’s CSPP is conducted pursuant to the terms contained in Attachment Y to the
22 NYISO’s OATT. Appended heret(; as an exhibit is Attachment Y to the NYISO

‘ 23 OATT, as approved by the FERC. Exhibit ___ (JPB-1).
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The CSPP contains three components. First, the New York transmission owning
utilities (TOs) conduct a Local Transmission Planning Process (LTPP) for each
individual transmission system, with the oppoﬁunity for stakeholder input ,lhro?xgh the
NYISO’s stakeholder committee process. Second, the LTPP provides input into 'the
NYISO’s CRPP and CSPP. The CRPP is a long-range assessr.nent of both resource
adequacy and transmission reliability of the New York bulk power system conducted
over a ten-year planning horizon. Third, the NYISO conducts the CARIS economic
planning process as part of the CSPP. In the CARIS, the NYISO and its market
participants will conduct a series of at least three studies of congestion on the
transmission system in New York, including an analysis of the costs and benefits of

relieving that congestion.

The NYISO has been conducting the long-term reliability planning portion of its
pianning process since 2005. The CRPP is now in its fourth cycle, covering the years
2009 to 2018. The formal local transmission planning process is just getting started,
although the transmission owners have been participating in the CRPP since it began.
The economic planning process contained in the CARIS is a new process, and \')vill
begin in spring or summer 2009, after the 2009 Comprehensive Reliability Plan

(CRP) is completed.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE APPROVALS AND THE CURRENT STATUS OF
THE NYISO’S COMPREHENSIVE SYSTEM PLANNING PROCESS AT THE

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION.
On December 7, 2007, the NYISO and the TOs made a compliance filing at FERC

containing its proposed CSPP as an amendment to its OATT Attachment Y. That
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filing contained three main components. First, the Transmission Owners will conduct
a Local Transmission Owner Planning Process that will provide the opportunity for
stakeholders to participate in their local planning efforts. Second, the outcome of the

Transmission Owners’ local plans will form an inpﬁt into the CRPP. The NYISO

filed changes to the CRPP to enhance that process and conform to the FERC's nine

*“planning principles” contained in FERC Order 890. Third, the CRP will form the
basis of a new economic planning process, known as the CARIS, which is described

in my testimony below.

After extensive negotiations among the NYISO, the TOs, PSC Staff and other
stakeholders, the NYISO and the TOs made a further compliance filing at FERC on
June 18, 2008. The tariff amendments provided for cost allocation and recovery for
regulated transmission reliability backstop solutions through the NYISO’s tariff, and
for cost allocation and recovery for regulated generation and demand response
backstop solutions through a state regulatory mechanism that is under development
among the PSC, the New York Power Authority (NYPA). and the Long Island Power
Authority (LIPA). The PSC is addressing the development of cost allocation and
recovery methodologies for generation and demand response reliability backstop
projects in Case 07-E-1507. On April 24, 2008, the PSC issued in Case 07-E-1507 a

“Policy Statement on Backstop Project Cost Recovery and Allocation.”

By order issued on October 16, 2008, FERC approved the December 7, 2007 and
June 18, 2008 compliance filings on the condition that certain changes be made.
FERC determined that the NYISO’s CSPP conforms to the nine planning principles

that FERC set forth in Order 890. These principles are: (1) coordination among
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transmission providers and customers; (2) openness; (3) transparency; (4) information
exchange; (5) comparability of treatment across resource types and transmission
customers; (6) dispute resolution procedures; (7) participation by New York in

regional planning; (8) economic planning studies; and (9) cost allocation and cost

recovery for new projects.

The FERC ordered the NYISO to make a further compliance filing by January 14,
2009 to: (1) establish additional procedu;es to allow stakeholders to participate, at an
eariy stage, in the Transmission Owners’ development of plvans for their local
systems; (ii) make explicit that all stakeholders can participate in the NYISO’s
planning processes whether they are Market Participants or not; (iii) provide
stakeholders the ability to review the details of the NYISO’s modeling work; and (iv)
describe in more detail the formulas for allocating costs of regulated economic
transmission projects. The NYISO is preparing this compliance filing with the TOs
and other stakeholders in the NYISO Electric System Planning Working Group

(ESPWG) and Transmission Policy Advisory Subcommittee (TPAS).

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE NYISO’S COMPREHENSIVE RELIABILITY
PLANNING PROCESS.

The CRPP assesses the -reliability of the bulk power system and evaluates solutions to
reliability needs. A detailed descriptiop of the CRPP, including applicable reliability
criteria, is contained in the NYISO Manual 26 entitled: “Comprehensive Reliability
Planning Process Manual (CRPP Manual),” which is attached hereto as an exhibit.
Exhibit ___ (JPB-2). Bulk power system needs are evaluated in accordance with

existing reliability criteria of the North American Electric Reliability Corporation
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(NERC), the Northeast Power Coordinating Council, Inc. (NPCC), and the New York
State Reliability Council (NYSRC). These criteria and a description of the nature of
long-term bulk power system planning are described in detail in the CRPP Manual,

and are briefly summarized below.

There are two different approaches to anal);zing a bulk power system’s reliability:
adequacy and security. The NYISO incorporates both of these approaches in its
reliability planning process. Adequacy is a planning and pfobabilistic concept. The
New York State bulk power system is .planned to meet a loss of load expectation
(LOLE), a reliability criterion that, at any given point in timé, any involuntary load
disconnection is not more frequent than once in every 10 years, or 0.1 days per year.
A system is adequate if the probability of having sufficient transmis_sion and
generation to meet expected demand is less than or equal to the reliability criterion in
the LOLE. This requirement forms the basis of New York’s installed capacity

(ICAP) requirement.

Security is an operating and deterministic concept. This means that possible events
are identified as having significant adverse reliability consequences, and the system is
planned and operated so that the system can continue to serve load even if these
events occur. The NYISO maintains a list of critical elements and most severe

contingency events it assesses in determining system security.

The CRPP is anchored in the market-based philosophy of the NYISO and its Market
Participants, which posits that market solutions should be the first choice to meet the
identified reliability needs. In the event that market-based solutions do not

materialize to meet a reliability need in a timely manner, the NYISO designates the
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Responsible Transmission Owner(s) to proceed with a regulated backstop solution in
order to maintain reliability. Market Participants can offer and promote alternative
regulated sofutions which, if determined by NYISO to help satisfy the identified
reliability needs and by regulators to be more desirable, may displace some or all of

the Responsible Transmission Owners’ regulated backstop solutions.

-All types of resources, transmission, demand response and/or generation projects, can

be offered as solutions under the CRPP, and the NYISO treats all resource types on a
comparable basis. The CRPP does not substitute for the planning that each

Transmission Owner conducts to maintain the reliability of its own bulk and non-bulk

power systems.

First implemented in 2005, the CRPP is an annual, ongoing process that combines the
expertise of the NYISO and its stakeholders to assess the electricity grid’s reliability
needs and to foster solutions to maintain bulk power system reliability. The first step
in the CRPP is the Reliability Needs Assessment (RNA), which evaluateé the
adequacy and security of the bulk power system over a ten-year Study Period. To
determine resource adequacy needs, the NYISO first identifies the amount of
resources in megawatts (known as “compensatory mcgawatts”).and the locations in
which they are needed to meet those needs. In the second step of the process. the
NYISO solicits and evaluates market-based and regulated backstop solutions for the
identified needs, and develops a CRP. The RNA and the CRP are developed with the
NYISO’s stakeholders in the ESPWG and the TPAS. Both are reviewed by the

NYISO’s Operating Committee and Management Committee. The RNA and the

CRP are subject to the final approval of the NYISO’s independent Board of Directors.
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If the RNA identifies a reliability need in the ten-year Study Period, the NYISO will
designate one or more Responsible Transmission Owners who aré responsible for
developing a regulated backstop solution to address the identified need. In addition,
the NYISO will solicit market-based and alternative regulated solutions to address
the identified need. Alternative regulated solutions can be proposed by developers
who want to offer their projects as an alternative to the regulated backstop solution

offered by the Transmission Owners. In the event that the NYISO determines that a

- regulated solution is needed to maintain reliability, the PSC will decide which

projects, among the proposed' regulated backstop solutions and the alternative
regulated solutions, should be granted a permit and begin construction. While the
NYISO has the responsibility to determine that a given proposed solution will, in fact,

meet an identified reliability need, it does not select the specific project that gets built

to meet a reliability need.

Solutions must satisfy the LOLE resource adequacy criterion. Nevertheless, the
solutions evaluated by the NYISO do not have to be in the same amounts or locations

identified in the RNA to quantify the reliability needs. There are various

‘combinations of resources and transmission upgrades that could meet the needs

identified in the RNA. The following figure summarizes the reliability planning

process:
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NYISO Reliability Planning Process
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Thé NYISO has been conducting the CRPP in collaboration with its stakeholders for
four years. The NYISO issued CRPs in 2005, 2007 and 2008. The NYISO is in the
process of completing the 2009 RNA, which is subject to approval by the NYISO

Board of Directors on January 13, 2009. The NYISO expects to issue the 2009 CRP

in April 2009.

The NYISO does not have the authority to license or construct projects to respond to
relial;oility needs. The ultimate approval of those projects lies with regulatory
agencies such as the FERC, the PSC, and environmental permitting agencies. The
futuré reliability of the bulk power system depends on a combination of additional

resources. provided in response to reliability needs by market forces and/or by the
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electric utility companies that continue to deliver electricity to customers, and are
obligated to provide .safe and adequate service. To maintain the system's long-term
reliability, those resources must be readily available or in development to meet future
needs. Accordingly, the NY ISd monitors the progress and continuéd viability of
proposed market-based and regulated projects to meet identified needs, and reports its

findings in its annual planning reports.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE 2008 RELIABILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT.

The 2008 RNA, which was issued on December 12, 2007, indicated that the
forecasted system first showed a reliability need in the year 2012. The need in 2012
resulted from a statewide capacity deficiency as well as a zonal deficiency resulting
from transmission constraints. Therefore, the need then identified could have been
resolved by adding capacity resources downstream of the transmission constraints or
by adding resources upstream of the transrﬂission constraints in conjunction with
transmission reinforcements. Based upon continuing load growth throughout the
NYCA from 2013 to 2017, and assuming no additional resources in the second five
years of the RNA study period, the 2008 RNA determined that additional resources
would be necded in these years as well. The RNA characterized the reliability needs
for 2013-2017 as statewide resource adequacy needs, such that there are multiple
combinations of generation, transmission and demand-side resources that could
satisfy those needs during this period. Consequently, the RNA identified all of the
Transmission Owners, except for NYPA, as Responsible Transmission Owners to

identify regulated backstop solutions for the reliability needs in 2013 to 2017.
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The 2008 RNA reported the results of two sensitivity analyses, which analyzed the

impact of delivering firm capacity over the Neptune line as well as an unconstrained

transmission system on the need date. The RNA also examined the reliability needs

" under a number of alternative scenarios that resulted in a change in the need date.

These scenarios included the impact of high load forecast conditions, implementation
of more stringent environmental regulaﬁons, potential NYPA firm power purchases
and increased levels of energy conservation as a result of the state’s “15 x 157
initiative. On December 10, 2007, the NYISO Board approved the 2008 RNA. A
copy of the 2008 RNA i.s attached to my testimony as an exhibit. Exhibit __ (JPB-

3).

Because the NYISO’s Open Access Transmission Tariff calls for the NYISO to
encourage market-based solutions to identified reliability needs, the NYISO issued its
initial request for those solutions on December 12, 2007. A copy of the December
12, 2007 letter is attached to my testimony as an exhibit. Exhibit ___ (JPB-4). The
NYISO requested that developers submit market-based solutions and that the
Responsible Transmission Owners submit regulated backstop solutions to the
identified reliability needs by March 1, 2008. The NYISO also stated that developers
could submit alternative regulated solutions if they chose to. On April I, 2008, the
NYISO issued a letter soliciting any remaining alternative regulated solutions by
April 21, 2008. A copy of the April 1, 2008 letter is attached to my testimony as an

exhibit. Exhibit __ (JPB-5).
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Q.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE 2008 COMPREHENSIVE RELIABILITY PLAN.
The 2008 CRP reported on the NYISO’s evaluation of the solutions received in
response to the NYISO’s solicitations to determine if the proposed solutions met the
reliability needs that were identified in the 2008 RNA. The NYISO received
proposals for 3,380 MW of market-based solutions. Moreovér, the NYISO received
updated plans from the Transmission Owners, regulated backstop solutions from the
Responsible Transmission Owners, and several alternative regulated proposals -

including the NYRI transmission project—as potential solutions to the identified

reliability needs.

Based upon updated information from LIPA, the 2008 CRP indicated that the
reliability need in 2012 wbuld be deferred until 2013 with the addition of firm
capacity over the Neptune project connecting Long Island to PJ M. In response to the
solicitations for solutions, the NYISO received more market-based proposals than the
minimum resources needed to meet resource adequacy éritcria and transmission
security criteria. Thus, the NYISO determined that the submitted market-based
projects in conjunction with updated TO plans, were sufficient to meet the Reliability
Needs identified in the 2008 RNA through 2017. Accordingly, the NYISO further
determined that there was no need at that time to request the Responsible
Transmission Owners to proceed with a regulated backstop solution to meet the
Reliability Needs. As a result, there was no venue in the NYISO CRPP for the
further consideration of a proposed alternative regulated project. The NYISO's
Board of Directors approved the 2008 CRP in July 2008. A copy of the 2008 CRP is

attached to my testimony as an exhibit. Exhibit ___ (JPB-6).
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Q.

DOES THE NYISO MONITOR THE PROGRESS OF PLANNED PROJECTS
AND SOLUTIONS TO RELIABILITY NEEDS AFER THE CRP IS

FINALIZED?

"Yes. In accordance with the criteria adopted by the NYISO Operating Committee,

the NYISO monitors, on a quarterly basis, the progress of market-based transmission,
generation and demand response resource solutions and plans to determine their on-
going viability, and to determine whether regulated back§top solutions need to be
triggered. Under the CRPP contained in OATT Attachment Y and the conditions
contained in the CRP issued by the NYISO, the NYISO can decide to trigger a
reliability solution within or outside of the regular CRPP cycle. The NYISO conducts
its monitoring process in accordance with NYISO Technical Bulletin 171, -Subject:
Monitoring Viability of Solutions to Meet Reliability Needs — NYISO Process. A

copy of Technical Bulletin 171 is attached to my testimony as an exhibit. Exhibit __

(JPB-7).

Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE DRAFT 2009 RELIABILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT.

A.

The draft 2009 RNA builds upon the results and analyses contained in the NY1SO’s
prior three CRPs in 2005, 2007, and 2008. The draft 2009 RNA indicates that the
forecasted baseline system meets applicable reliability criteria for the next 10 years,
from 2009 through 2018, without any additional resource needs. There are three
primary reasons the 2009 RNA does not identify reliability needs for the next 10
years:

1. Resource additions — Approximately 1,714 MW of new generation

resources, above the level included in the 2008 RNA, have been incorporated

20
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!\)

into the 2009 RNA Base Case. These resources include approximately 800
MW of new wind capacity. Also, the NYISO now expects a lower MW level
of scheduled generation retirements than in the 2008 RNA. In addition, the
construction of capacitor banks at the Millwood Substation incorporated in
both 2007 and 2008 CRPs has increased transfer capability from the lower
Hudson Valley into New York City. |

Energy Efficiency Portfolio Standard Order (EEPS) - Pursuant to the
EEPS, the PSC has taken the initial steps to implement its jurisdictional
portion of the Governor’s initiative to lower energy consumption on the
electric system by 15% of the 2007 forecasted levels in 2015. Using
conservative assumptiéns appropriate to a baseline reliability analysis, the
NYISO determined that there should be a reduction of approximately five
percent of peak load, approximately 2,000 MW, from the previously
forecasted levels by 2015. based upon currently authorized spending leVé]s.
Additional EEPS program spending would delay reliability needs even
further.

Increased registration in Special Case Resource (SCR) — The NYISO has
experienced a significant increase in the registration of the SCR programs that
have effectively reduced the need for additional capacity resources to the
system based on customer pledges to cut energy usage on demand. The
NYISO currently has registrations of approximately 2,084 MW of SCRs, an

increase of 761 MW of resources over the SCR levels included in the 2008

RNA.

21
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In order to test the robustness of the bulk power system and to bound the conditions
under which reliability needs may arise, the NYISO has conducted analyses of
numerous sensitivities and scenarios. The sensitivity and scenario analyses include
the impact of: (i) higher load forecast, including extreme weather conditions; (ii)
lower level of penetration of energy efficiency programs; (iii) implementation of
more stringent environmental regulations to reduce the level of NOx and greenhouse
gas emissions; and (iv) the retirement of existing generation in certain key locations.

Under some of these scenarios, an immediate reliability need could occur.

In summary, based upon the combined effect of lower load forecasts resulting from
New York State public policy programs, transmission system upgrades, generator
additions, a lower level of scheduled retirements and increased SCR program
participation, the NYISO has determined that at this time there are no reliability needs
in New York from 2009 through 2018 and, the?efore, no need to request solutions this
year. Nevertheless, the NYISO will issue a 2009 CRP to update the 2008 CRP, and

to serve as the basis of the NYISO's first CARIS later in 2009.

Should the NYISO determine that conditions have changed, it will then determine
whether market-based solutions that are currently progressing are sufficient to meet
the resource adequacy and system security needs of the New York power grid. If not,
the NYISO will address any newly identified reliability need in the subsequent RNA

or, if necessary, issue a request for a Gap Solution.

The NYISO Operating Committee and Management Committee voted to recommend
that the NYISO Board approve the 2009 draft RNA, on November 17, 2008, and

December 3. 2009, respectively. The NYISO’s Board of Directors will consider the

[
(5]

3550




[

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

i8

19

Case: 06-T-0650

JOHN P. BUECHLER

Draft 2009 RNA at its January 13, 2009 meeting. A copy of the draft 2009 RNA is

attached to my testimony as an exhibit. Exhibit ___ (JPB-8).

PLEASE bESCRIBE HOW THE NYISO HAS CONSIDERED NYRI’S
PROPOSED TRANSMISSION PROJECT IN THE COMPREHENSIVE
RELIABILITY PLANNING PROCESS.

As described above, the NYISO CRPP identifies reliability needs and the amount of
resources that are required to fulfill those needs. All types of resources are eligible
for consideration to fulfill the reliability needs; transmission, generation and demand
response. The NYISO solicits solutions to reiiability needs, but does not solicit
specific projects. Rather, developers submit proposed projects to the NYISO to

determine whether they would fulfill part or all of a reliability need.

NYRI offered its proposed direct current transmission line in the NYISO’s CRPP as
an alternative regulatory solution in the 2007 CRP and in the 2008 CRP. That is,
NYRI did not offer its project to NYISO as a market-based solution that would be
funded by private investment seeking to make sufficient revenues in the wholesale
markets to make its project viable. Nor is NYRI a Responsible Transmission Owner,
as defined in the NYISO’s tariff. It is the Responsible Transmission Owner that must
come forward with a regulated reliability solution to serve as a backstop that can be
called upon by the NYISO in the case where the market-based solutions fail. Rather,
as an alternative regulated solution, the NYRI project could be selected to meet a
reliability need under the CRPP only if five things happénz (1) the NYISO has
determined that there are insufficient market-based solutions to meet that need and

has called upon a Responsible TO to proceed with developing its regulated backstop

23
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solution; (2) the Responsible Transmission Owner(s) file for approval of their
reliability backstop solution project; (3) NYRi files ifs project with the PSC to be
considered as an alternative to .the Responsible Transmission Owner(s)’ backstop
solution project: (4) the NYISO has determined that the NYRI project will meet the
identified reliability need; and (5) the PSC selects.NYRl's project to be built instead
of the Transmission Owners’ project. Thus, the PSC and not the NYISO will
ultimately determine whether the NYRI project will move forward pursuant to the
New York Public Service Law. If all of the above events occurred, including the
PSC’s selection of the NYRI project to proceed instead of the TOs’ regulated

backstop solution, the NYRI project then would be eligible for cost recovery under .

the NYISO’s tariff.

The NYISO’s role in the CRPP process is to evaluate whether the NYRI project, if
built, would meet all or part of a reliability need. In the 2007 CRP, the NYISO
evaluated the benefit to reliability if NYRI were built in the 2011-2016 time period.
The NYISQ modeled NYRI as a resource that could increase transfer capability on
the transmission network. Based upon studies conducted as part of the NYISO’s
interconnection process (Direct Testimony of Steven L. Corey at page 12), the
NYISO determined that the NYRI line would nominally increase the transfer
capability between Upstate New York in NYISO Zone E and Downstate New York in
NYISO Zone G by 1,200 MW. To take into account simultaneous transmission
constraints that could occur between Zones E and G, the NYISO and the stakeholders
in the CRPP decided to model the NYRI facility conservatively as increasing transfer

capability by 1,000 MW. With these modeling assumptions, the NYISO determined
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that NYRI would reduce the LOLE when the bulk power system could experience a
forced outage. That is, the statewide LOLE on the power grid was lower with NYRI
than without it; In the 2007 CRP, the NYISO determined that there were sufficient
market-based solutions to meet the reliability needs the NYISO identified.
Accordingly, the NYISO did not have to ask the Transmission Owners to proceed
with their regulated backstop solution. Thus, there was no opportunity for

consideration of the NYRI project as an alternative to a TOs’ regulated backstop

solution.

In 2008, NYRI again offered its proposed line as an alternative regulated solution to
the reliability needs identified in the NYISO’s 2008 Reliability Needs Assessment.
The NYISO modeled and analyzed the NYRI project in the same way as it had in
2007. It determined that the NYRI project, if built, would improve the reliability of
the bulk power system by decreasing the statewide LOLE by approximately the same
amount as in the prior CRP. As before, the NYISO determined in the 2008 CRP that
there were sufficient market-based solutions to meet the identified reliability needs.
That meant that the NYISO once again did not have to ask the Transmission Owners
to proceed with PSC approval for their regulated backstop solution. Hence, NYRT’s
alternative regulated solution was not placed before the PSC as a potential alternative
regulated solution. As described above, the draft 2009 RNA states that there are no
bulk power system reliability needs for the New York grid for the period of 2009-
2018. This means that, if the Board of Directors’ approves the 2009 RNA as
submitted. the NYISO will not be issuing a letter seeking market-based solutions.

regulated backstop solutions or alternative regulated solutions in 2009.
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Q.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE NYISO’S CRPP
AND THE PSC’S JURISDICTION, INCLUDING THE ARTICLE VII
PROCESS. |

As ﬁoted above, the NYISO has the obligation under its FERC-approved tariff to
perform a CRPP analS/sis periodically. Upon information and belief, provisions
contained in Article IV of the Public Service Law authorize the PSC to maintain safe
and adequate electric ser-vice in the State of New York and to order such reasonable
improvements to the electric system in New York as the PSC deems necessary. Upon
information and belief, under the provisions of Article VII of the New York State
Public Service Law, the PSC has the authority to review and rule on an application
for a Certification of Environmental Compatibility and Publié Need for constructing a
major utility transmission facility as defined in the Public Service Law. If the five
conditions noted above were met, an alternative regulated transmission project
submitted in response to the NY'ISO’s CRPP process could then come before the PSC
to determine whether the project should be built as an improvement to the electric
system in New York, and/or granted a certificate in an Article VII proceeding. And,
as stated earlier, if all of these events occurred, including the PSC’s selection of the
NYRI project to proceed instead of the TO’s regulated backstop solution, the NYRI

project then would be eligible for cost recovery under the NYISO's taritf.

Transmission projects, such as the NYRI line, can be filed with and considered by the
PSC under Article VII and other provisions of the Public Service Law independent of
their status under the NYISO’s CRPP process. The outcome of the NYISO's CRPP

does not determine the result of the PSC’s proceeding under Article VII whether to
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grant the NYRI line a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and Public Need.
The NYISO is not a government agency, and its does not take public policy
considerations into account when analyzing the impact of proposed facilities on
reliability needs it identifies. The decision whether there is a public need for the
NYRI line'is up to the PSC. The PSC can take into consideration whether or not the
NYISO has asked for a regulated backstop solution to meet reliability needs. The
PSC’s decision whether to grant a certificate based on public néed is based on public

policy factors much broader than reliability, as stated in the Public Service Law.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE CARIS PROCESS APPROVED BY FERC FOR
ECONOMIC PLANNING FOR TRANSMISSION PROJECTS IN NEW
YORK.

The CARIS is contained in Sections 11, 12, 13 and 15 of Attachment Y to the
NYISO’s OATT. Exhibit ___ (JPB-1). The NYISO will conduct the CARIS as part
of a combined cycle of reliability and economic planning studies over successive
twenty-four month periods. Each economic planning cycle will be based on the most
recently approved CRP. Each economic planning cycle will use the same ten-year
planning horizon as that used in the CRP. The CARIS will consist c;f a minimum of
three congestion studies, with analyses of scenarios based on those three studies
conducted in accordance with criteria in the NYISO’s tariff and the requests from
stakeholders. Stakeholders may also request additional congestion and resource
integration studies at their own expense. The NYISO will post all requests for studies

on its website. The CARIS will provide historical analysis, as well as forward-
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looking estimates. of relevant data, such as areas of congestion on the New York

State Transmission System.

The Market Participants will provide the NYISO with the data necessary for the
completion of a meaningful CARIS, including existing and planned additions to the
New York State Transmission System, proposals for merchant transmission facilities,
generation additions and retirements, demand response programs, and any long-term
firm transmission requests made to the NYISO. This information will assist in the
development of a CARIS that fully identifies issues and possible solutions to

congestion on the New York State Transmission System. -

In addition, the NYISO will combine the component studies selected and assess
system congestion and resource integration over the 10-year study period. In
responding to identified congestion, the NYISO will consider, on an equal footing, all

resource types, including transmission, generation, and demand response.

The NYISO will conduct an initial cost-benefit analysis of potential solutions to
alleviate identified system congestion. These solutions will not be specific projects,
but the addition of generic transmission, demand response and/or generation
resources in key locations on the system to measure their effects on relieving
transmission congestion. The principal benefit metric for projects will be expressed
as the present value of the production cost reductions across New York State that
would result from each potential solution. The NYISO is working with its
stakeholders through the ESPWG/TPAS to develop the methodology and models that
will be used for the CARIS analysis. Additional metrics for evaluating the benefits of

solutions will include estimates of reductions in losses, location-based marginal
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prices (LBMP) for energy, insta-lled capacity costs, ancillary services costs, emission
costs and payments for Transmission Congestion Contracts. Based on this analysis,
the CARIS will provide stakeholders witﬁ a wide range of information to assist them
in identifying and developing actual solutions to congestion problems. This
information will include information on the costs of potential transmission,
generation and demand response solutions to congestion, as appropriate and as

developed through the NYISO’s stakeholder process.

The NYISO’s stakeholder committees must review the draft CARIS report before it is
forwarded to the NYISO’s independent Board of Directors for approval. Once the
CARIS report is approved by the Board, the NYISO will post the report on its website

and conduct public information sessions regarding the report.

DOES THE CARIS PROVIDE FOR COST RECOVERY FOR ECONOMIC

PROJECTS TO RELIEVE TRANSMISSION CONGESTION?

Yes. Developers of potential economic transmission projects, with an estimated

capital cost in excess of $25 million, that seek regulated recovery of project costs

through the NYISO's tariff may submit their project for analysis by the NYISO in |
accordance with its beneficiaries-pay cost allocation principles and methodology. |

Beneficiaries will be those entities that economically benefit from the project, and the

While the initial eligibility for regulated cost recovery will be determined on the basis
of a NYCA-wide production cost savings. the beneficiary determination for cost
allocation purposes will be based upon Load Serving Entities’ relative LBMP

|
cost allocation among them will be based upon their relative economic benefits.
savings. Both production cost benefits and LBMP load savings will be measured and
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compared on a net present value basis with the project’s revenue requirements over
the first ten years of the proposed project’s life. The NYISO's analysis will provide
additional information, where appropriate. rcg.arding future uncertainties, such as
possible changes in load forecasts, fuel prices, and environmental regulations as well
as other qualitative, non-quantified impacts, such as improved system operation, other
environmental effects, and integration of renewable resources. The cost/benefit
analysis, beneficiary determination and cost allocation for a specific project must be
voted on by the Business Issues Committee and the Management Committee, and

approved by the NYISO’s Board of Directors.

To be eligible for cost allocation and recovery under the NYISO’s tariff, the benefit
of the proposed project must exceed its cost measured over the first ten years from the
proposed commercial operation date for the project. A transmission project that
meets the benefit/cost test must also receive a super-majority (80 percent) of the
weighted vote of the project beneficiaries that are present at the time of the vote. If
the proposed project obtains the required vote in favor of implementing the projeqt,
and the project is implemented, all designated beneficiaries, including those voting
not to implement the project, will pay their allocated share of the cost of the project.
The FERC must approve the costs of a proposed transmission project to alleviate

congestion before those costs may be recovered though the NYISO’s tariff.

If a project receives approval under this process for cost recovery under the NYISO
OATT, then costs are allocated to beneficiaries in the same manner in which votes are
allocated to those beneficiaries. Specifically, “[f]or each load zone that would benefit

from a proposed project, the NYISO will allocate the cost of the project to load based

30
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on share of total savings calculated in accordance with the tariff. Furthermore, within

zones, costs will be allocated to Load Serving Entities based on MWh.

WHAT‘IS THE STATUS OF THE CARIS PROCESS IN NEW YORK?

FERC conditionally approved the CARIS process by order issued on October 16,
2008. The first CARIS pro.cess will be based upon the final 2009 CRP. The NYISO
expects to submit the 2009 CRP for Board approval by April 2009. In the meantime,
the NYISO is working with stakeholders in the ESPWG and TPAS to develop the
pro.cedures called for by the tariff to implement the CARIS process. The NYISO
expects to complete the first CARIS regarding congestion on the New York
transmission system and the costs and. benefits of potential projects to relieve
transmission congestion by the end of 2009. Specific projects to alleviate congestion
will be considered in the CARIS process after the 2009 CARIS is approved by the

NYISO’s Board of Directors.

PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW NYRI CAN PARTICIPATE IN THE CARIS
PROCESS AT THE NYISO.

NYRI is eligible to participate throughout the NYISO’s CARIS process. NYRI can
participate in the development of pro.cedures for the implementation of the CARIS at
the ESPWG and TPAS. Further, NYRI may participate in the NYISO’s identification
and preparation of the first series of three congestion analysis and cost-benefit
studies, which will be reported in the first CARIS report. As a participant in the
NYISO’s governance process, NYRI may become eligible to vote on the CARIS
report at the NYISO Business Issues Committee (BIC) and Management Committee

(MC). Once the CARIS report is approved by the NYISO's Board of Directors,
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NYRI is free to propose its project to alleviate transmission congestion in New York,
- and to request that the NYISO perform the required analysis to determine its
eligibility for regulated cost recovery under the NYISO tariff as an economic project.
NYRI is eligible to advocate for its project and to participate in the study of its
benefits relative to its costs. Moreover, NYRI can participate in the study to identify
the beneficiaries of its projects and the relative voting weights to be assigned to those
beneficiaries. NYRI is free to advocate that the requisite 80 percent of the weighted
beneficiary vote cast their votes in favor of the project, as approved by FERC. If so,
NYRI as the project developer will be obliged to demonstrate to FERC that the ‘cost
of its project is just and reasonable, and should be included in the NYISO's tariff.
The NYISO’s economic planning process represents an appropriate avenue available
to NYRI to request an analysis of the costs and benefits of its proposed transmission
facility and a determination of' whether the project would be eligible to receive
regulated cost recovery under the NYISO tariff. In order for NYRI to obtain cost
recovery under the economic planning provisions of the NYISO's tariff, NYRI must

proceed through the NYISO’s economic planning process.

32
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Q. DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY AT THIS TIME?

Yes, it does.

Q?z/ﬁw

e John P. Buechler

Swom to before me th day of April,
2009 in the City of IJ paw County of
Su_ o]l , New York:

%w@é ,

Notél)yFPubllc
AFFIX SEAL:

JANE DEBOER
Notary Public, State of New York
No. 01D56059471

Qualified in Suffolk Co, nt
Commission Expires q Ldg@//
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Do you want to do the
exhibits? |

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Yes. And the exhibits have
been marked as follows: For SLC 1 thrbugh 5, they are
269, 270, 271, 272 and 273. For JB 1 through 8, they
are 274 through 281.

MR. SALTARELLI: Thank you, Your Hénor.

MS. BARISH-STRAUS: Your Honor, NYPA has a
question regarding the testimony in terms of a
correction, and I thought I would just bring it up now
before it's entered into the'record.

We have a question regarding page 19, line

10 of Mr. Buechler's direct testimony. "'The sentence
reads, "Based upon updated information from NYPA" --
N-Y-P-A -- "the 2008 CRP indicated that the reliability

need in 2012 would be deferred until 2013 with the
addition of firm capacity over the Neptune project
connecting Long Island to PJIM."

My understanding is this is LIPA's project,
not NYPA's project, and I'm wondering if this
information was received from L-I-P-A, LIPA, rather than
NYPA.

(Buechler) I can answer that. Your

statement is correct. The referenced line 10 on page 19
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should say LIPA, L-I-P-A, not NYPA, N-Y-P-A.

MS. BARISH-STRAUS: Thank you, Mr. Buechler.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Would you make that
correction in the disk also. Thanks, Counsel.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay. I believe the panel
is ready for cross-examination. Can I just have an
indication of who has cross for this panel.

Oh, boy. Okay. Does anyone want to start?

Mr. Glasser.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Oh, we love a volunteer.
Thank you, Mr. Glasser.

MR. GLASSER: Everyone else was being shy
so I thought I'd £ill the vacuum. Now if I can just get
to a position where I can see the witnesses. I need to
put them on a platform. There we go.

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. GLASSER:

Q. Good morning, gentlemen. My name is Bob.Glasser.
I represent Central Hudson. Mr. Buechler knows that.
Mr. Corey, we haven't met.

I think I'd like to start with Mr. Buechler's

testimony, 1f you would, your direct testimony, page 26.
At the top of the page, you have a guestion, "Please |

explain the relationship between the NYISO, CRPP and the
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PSC's jurisdiction, including the Article VII process."

Do you see that, sir?

A. (Buechler) Yes, I do.

Q.. You address some aspects of the relationship.
I'd like to try and see whether there are other aspects
of the relationship.

And the relationship.I;m going to discuss is the
relationship between Article VII and the topic you
turned to on page.27, which you cail CARiS, C-A-R-I-S.

A. (Buechler) ées.

Q. Solmy guestion is, what's the relationship
between the NYISO's CARIS process and the PSC's
jurisdiction?

A. (Buechler) Well, in the -- in the section on
page 26 that you first pointed me to, there I talk about
specifically the relation between the Article VII
process and the NYISO's comprehensive system --
comprehensive reliability planning process.

But I thinklmy answer would be the same with
respect to the CARIS. And the CARIS stands for
congestion assessment and resource integration studies,
which is our new economic planning process.

Namely that, again, upon my information and

belief, I'm not an attorney, the PSC has certain
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obligations under the Article VII requirements, and
similarly the NYISO has obligations under its tariffs,
its federally approved tariffs, here specifically with
respeét to our plannihg procéss.

And our overall planning process now contains
both reliability and economics, so I think my answer
would be the same as -- as in the section oﬁ page 26.

Q. Okay. Thank you. And just to be more specific,
and maybe the best way to do this is -- you've been
employed in the utility business for shall I say awhile,
Mr. Buechler?

A. (Buechler) That's a fair statement.

Q. You've worked at a utility and then at the ISO
for several years, correct?»

A. (Buechler) That's correct.

Q. Have you been involved in proceedings before the
Public Service Commission?

A. (Buechler) In a former life, quite a few, yes.

Q. Including Article VIIs?

A, (Buechler) To my recollection, not directly --
not as a witness in Article VIIs.

Q. But you're fam -- are you familiar -- do you
consider yourself to be familiar with Article VII at

some level?
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A. (Buechler) At some level and it was gquite a while
ago.

Q. Okay. Do you have any understanding of the kinds
of assessments that the PSC makes in an -- when it
reaches a decision in an Article VII case?

A. (Buechler) Without knowing exactly what you're
talking about I guess I would say yes, but need more
clarification.

Q. Sure, I'd be happy to help with that.

Are you aware of whether the PSC reaches
conclusions concerning_costs of proposed facilities and
benefits of proposed facilities in an Article VII case?

A. (Bueéhler) I guess generally, yes, but
specifically how that's done, I am not.

Q. Assuming that the PSC does reach conclusions to
cut out the costs of a proposed facility and back in
benefits of a proposed facility, are those conclusions
binding at all on the ISO under its CARIS process?

A. (Buechler) Again, as a non-attorney, I would say
no.

Q. Okay. So now let's assume that the PSC, in
analyzing this particular project, reaches a specific
conclusion concerning the cost of the project and the

benefits of the project to parties in the southern part
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of the state. Do you have that assumption, sir?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. Is it the NYISO's position that it can make its
own allocation'of costs and benefits that is unre;ated
to what the NYPSC has found?

A. (Buechler) the NYISO, as I saidAbefore, has
obligations under its federal tariff to conduct planhing
processes, both reliability and economic. Those
processes have specific requirements and methodologies
which, in the case of the -- the economic planning
process, are still being developed in conjunction with
our stakeholder prpcess.

My understanding of the -- and we have to -- and
we -- excuse me -- we have to follow those processes.
My understanding of the PSC's considerations as to
benefits of a -- of a project in an Article VII context
is that those considerations and benefits go well beyond
the -- I guess I'll call them mechanical calculations
that are specified in the NYISO tariff. So, I see them
as two different, different processes.

Q. The ISO is then suggesting that after the
hearings that are being conducted in Article VII and the
conclusions of the PSC, the ISO will conduct an

independent process that could arrive at different
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allocations of costs and different allocations of
benefits; is that correct?

A. (Buechler) With a clarification. The NYISO -- if
we're now talking about our economic planning process --

Q. The CARIS.

A. (Buechler) the CARIS, yes.
Q. Yes.
A. (Bﬁechler) the NYISO would conduct an analysis of

the NYRI project, or any project, in fact, only in the
event a projects developer came to the NYISO requesting
that it be considered for eligibility for regulated
funding under the NYISO tariff and the NYISO tariff
rules. |
So the NYISO would not and doesn't have any

obligation to unilaterally conduct such -- such an
analysis.

Q. Has the NYRI developer made a -- that request of
the NYISO?

A. (Buechlerf Not as of this date.

Q. Are they free to do it at any time?

A. (Buechler) In accordance with our tariff, vyes.

Q. So if -- it would be feasible, then, for the

project developer to litigate the Article VII case to a

conclusion, and then everyone who has an interest in the
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allocations of costs or benefits would have to start all
over again before the NYISO; is that a fair conclusion?

A. {Buechler) I think that, again, there are
different considerations in the two processes. And I'll
stand by what I said a moment ago.

If the developer -- NYRI in this case -- desired
funding through the NYIéO tariff, then they would have
to go through our process, yes.

Q. So if -- if the developer makes that election,
which at this point we don't know whether they will or
not, the parties who are affected by the outcome are

subject, then, to a second evaluation before the NYISO.

We agree on that, I think.

A. (Buechler) I think so.

Q. And I think you also said that the NYISO -- I
think you've said a couple of times, actually, that the
NYISO uses different considerations than the NYPSC does
in Article VII.

Did you make that statement, sir?

A. (Buechler) Yes. Specifically the NYPSC considers
a -- my understanding -- a broad range of public policy
considerations when you talk -- when you use the word
benefits.

And the NYISO does not have -- does not have such
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a .scope -- such a scope nor authority under our tariff.

Q. Well, under the ISO's tariff and CARIS process

"how will -- assuming that the NYRI developer actually

applies, how will -- what are the benefits of the

\

project that the NYISO will then allocate? And I mean

describe them generically, if you would, the types of

benefits:
A. {Buechler) Yeah, certainly. Well, my testimony
does go into more detail. But the two principal

metrics, we call them, for determining the benefits
under the NYISO economic planning process, the first
a statewide production cost benefit, and the second i
load savings calculated by zone.

And that latter metric is used to determine,
under our process, the beneficiaries of the project.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Would you explain that

second definition -- that second definition again.
(Buechler) Yes, Your Honor. The second
definition -- well, both -- to calculate both, we would

be using a production costing model such as the ones
that we talked about earlier perhaps.
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Right.

{Buechler) there would be two cases run,

you will: One with the project in place. One without

1

is

s a

if
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it. For each of the metrics, actgally, we would compare
those two cases.

For the second metric we'd look on a zone --
what the NYISO calls a zonal basis and determine
zone-by-zone what the difference in load payments are
under'the NYISO's pricing system.

And for those zones that experience a
benefit, i.e., a savings with the project versus the
without case, those are termed under our tariff to be
the beneficiaries of the project.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are the beneficiaries
load-serving entities?

(Buechler) Yes, they are.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Not end-use customers?

(Buechler) Load-serving entities are the
beneficiaries. The beneficiary -- the cost allocation
is then determined on the same basis of the beneficiary
determination.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. I am sorry,
Counsel. Go ahead.

MR. GLASSER: ©No. That was exactly where I
was going, Your Honor. Thank you.

BY MR. GLASSER:

Q. Mr. Buechler, has the -- I gather from your
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earlier responses to Judge Stockholm's questions that
the specific model to be employed in this process has
not been selected by the NYISO; is that correct?

A. (Buechlexr) That's correct. )

Q0. And I -- it seems like it also follows, since the
model has not been selected, there has not been any
conclusions reached as to the appropriate specification
of input assumptions.

Would thét also be correct?

A. (Buechler) That's correct also.

Q. What is the anticipated format for the
specification of the beneficiaries? And by that I mean,
for example, does the ISO anticipate that the
beneficiaries will be defined by a percentage of the
total project or in some other fashion?

A. (Buechler) The beheficiary and cost allocation
determination is made on the basis of the -- the dollar
amount of load savings that will be experienced, again,
initially on a zonal basis.

So if load-serving entities in Zone A received
$100 million of savings, and load-serving entities in
Zzone B received $200 million in savings, the cost
allocation would be one-third to Zone 1 and two-thirds

to Zone B.
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Q. Great. Thank you. Based upon your knowledge of
the NYRI project -- well, maybe I should ask a
foundational question.

‘Do you have a generai understanding of the nature
of the NYRI project?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. Do you understand that it's alleged that -- and I
mean that only because it hasn't been proven here yet
because the case is ongoing. I don't mean that in any
negative connotation.

It's been alleged that the NYRI project will
produce savings to consumers in the Central Hudson area
and other areas of the state to the south?

Are you familiar with that?

A. (Buechler) Generally, yes. I couldn't give you
the numbers. 1I'm sure you could give them to me.
Q. What are the load zones -- the NYISO load zones

that would be potential recipients of those types of
savings?

A. (Buechler) Well, sinée we haven't done the
analysis, since NYRI not come to us to request us to do
that analysis yet, I -- would only be conjecture, but I
think what you alluded to, I would agree with, would be

zones in the southeast portion of the state.
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Q. And could -- for the record, could you just state
what they are?

A. (Buechler) Zones G, H, I, J, K potentially, or
those are the zones in the southeast portion of the
state.

Q. And those -- would those zones correspond
generally to the areas served by Central Hudson, Orange
& Rockland, Con Edison and Long Island Power Authority?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. And I guess I should say New York Power Authority

as well.
A. (Buechler) Yes.
Q0. And what portion of the annual energy use in the

state do those zones represent, approximately?

A. (Buechler) Somewﬁat over half.

Q. Mr. Buechler, do you have an understanding of the
estimated cost for the NYRI project?

A. (Buechler) I believe I read material from the
developer in the range of i.6 billion, subject to no
correction.

MR. SINGER: They told me I can't testify.
MR. GLASSER: No, I'd be happy to have Mr.
Singer provide that for the record so we're all on the

same wavelength.

3575




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

3575

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Go ahead, Mr. Singer.
I'll let you testify.

MR. SINGER: $1.8 to $2.1:billion is our
estimate for the routes that are under consideration.
BY MR. GLASSER:

Q. Mr. Buechler, I take it from your experience in
the industry you're familiar witﬁ the concept of a
carrying charge?

A. (Buechler) Yes, I am.

Q. Could we, for this discussion, assume a carrying
charge of, say, 20 percent as a reasonable
approximation?

A. (Buechler) I'm unaware of the funding specifics
of the NYRI project, so I really couldn't say.

Q. In your experience in the utility industry, would
a carrying charge rate of 20 percent be not atypical?

A. (Buechler) It would not be atypical for a utility
in New York State.

Q. Okay. A 20 percent carrying charge rate at a

cost of $2 billion implies annual costs of

$200 million -- excuse me -- $400 million, correct?
A. {Buechler) Your arithmetic is correct, yes.
Right.

Q. Are you familiar with the Central Hudson's annual
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electric revenues for delivery and commodity?

A. (Buechler) No, I'm not.

Q. If I were to suggest to you that they are less
than $600 million, would that seem like -- would that
seem reasonable to you?

A. (Buechler) I really can't say. I haven't looked
at that information.

_Q. Okay. Fine. Well, assuming -- if you would
agfee to take as an assumption that Central Hudson's
annual delivery and commodity revenues are about
$600 million, do you see why Central Hudson would be
concerned about yéur CARIS process?

MR. SALTARELLI: Your Honor, I'm sorry. I
would object to that question. It certainly, I think,
is beyond the scope of his direct testimony. It calls
for him to speculate about a lot of things that --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And I don't think there's
enough foundation for the question either, although --

MR. GLASSER: I'll rephrase, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yeah, I think you might
have to take that in steps.

MR. GLASSER: Sure. Sure.

BY MR. GLASSER:

Q. Let's go back to our discussion about these --
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the various load zones. You said that in G, H, I, J,
and K, those zones represented something over half of
the annual energy in the state, correct, Mr. Buechler?
A. (Buechler) Yes.
Q. Do you know approxiﬁately what portion of the
annual energy in the state is represented by Central
Hudson? And I'll suggest to you it's about 3 percent.

A. (Buechler) I'll take that subject to check, I

guess.
Q. Thank you. So if we -- let's assume we are now

doing a CARIS process for a $2 billion project that has
annual revenue requirements or costs of about
$200 million, and the ISO is now going to determine how
to allocate those costs between Central Hudson and the
other LSEs in the southern part of the state.

Do you have that assumption in mind?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. As we sit here today, how does Central Hudson
know that it will be allocated a fair portion of those
costs?

A. (Buechler) By Central Hudson's support for the
NYISO compliance filing which proposed this methodology.
It was a joint filing between the NYISO and the New York

transmission owners, of which I assume that Central
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Hudson is one.

I can assume Central Hudson was in agreement or
is in agreement with the economic methodology, including
the cost allocation methodology. So that's one.

Second would be by their continued participation
in the NYISO planning process, and in the development of
the economic planning process and the specific
assumptions and methodologies and their participgtion,
presumably, in the governance process, as well.

Q. Now, when -- when this project we've been talking
about comes to the ISO for the application of CARIS,
Central Hudson's 3 percent is going to be considered
together with the more than 47 percent of the other
utilities in the southerﬁ part of the state, correct?

A. (Buechler) Well, I'm not exactly sure where
you're going. Maybe I didn't clarify previously. The
cost allocation methodology is based upon the -- the
load savings, the so-called allocation of marginal price
load savings by zone, not on a load ratio share.

So just because you're using 3 percent there, it
seems like you have an assumption based on it.

Q. And I appreciate the clarification. I was just
using that to suggest that the relative size of Central

Hudson compared to the other utilities in the southern
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part of the state is roughly as 3 is to more than 47.
You follow the suggestion, sir?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. So the next step is that presumably the wvarious
utilities in the southern part of the state will have
independent views of what their appropriate share of the
costs and the benefits will be, correct?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. And how in the NYISO CARIS process will it be
feasible for Central Hudson to present its views?

A. (Buechler) Several methods I've mentioned
already, which is participate in the stakeholder
process, which is involved from the -- the beginning of
tﬁe economic planning process in terms of developing the
inputs and the models and assumptions that you mentioned
a moment ago that are not yet finalized, through the
review of the studies and analyses, which will
ultimately be moved through the NYISO stakeholders
process for a vote and then approval by the board of
directors.

But finally one element of our economic planning
process that we haven't discussed yet is that the
designated beneficiaries, following that approval

process up through the board of directors of the -- of
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the analysis -- the cost allocation beneficiary
analysis, that those designated beneficiaries must first
vote by an 80 percent supermajority to approve cost
recovery for that project under the NYISO tariff.

And there are -- what we also haven't talked
about, there are other so-called metrics that the NYISO
is to provide for information purposes to all parties,
but one might think specifically of use to the
beneficiaries for their consideration in that process.

Q. All right. 1I'd just like to clarify your
reference to the 80 percent supermajority. That's an
80 percent of the designated beneficiaries?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. So, given the figures we talked about previously,
where Central Hudson is 3 percent and the other
utilities in the southern part of the state are more
than 47 percent, then there's no fashion in which
Central Hudson could control the outcome, correct?

A. (Buechler) I didn't hear you use the word
"control" before.

Q. I didn't. You're correct.

A. (Buechler) I thought I heard you say participate
or influence or make their wishes known.

Q. No, you're correct. I didn't. This is a
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different question.

My point being that even with an 80 percent
supermajority, it's feasible under the process for the
position of a smaller utility to be not taken into
account.

Do you agree with that?

A. (Buechler) I don't agree with the formulation of
not taken into account. Their votes -- if they were a”

beneficiary, the vote would be taken into account,

certainly.
Q. The vote would count, but it's -- you would agree

that it's feasible that it could -- that the position of
Central Hudson could 5e overwhelmed by the position of
larger utilities?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Could I get a
clarification on vote? Is that the weighted voting that
the ISO uses or is that you've got ten beneficiaries and
you need eight to vote yes?

{Buechler) To clarify. If by the weighted
voting that the ISO uses in our governance process you
mean the sector voting, it is not -- has nothing to do
with the sector voting.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. Explain to me how
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the voting under the 80 percent supermajority rule
works.

(Buechler) All right, Your Honor. It's --
that voting is consistent with the beneficiary and cost
allocation determination. In the example I gave
previously Zone A would have one-third of the benefit,
so Zone A on a weighted basis also would have one-third
of the voting power, if you will.

It's identical to the beneficiary
determination. Nothing to do with per -- it does not --
it is not on a per megawatt hour basis. It is not on a
stakeholder or governance or sector basis.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. I appreciate that.
Thank you.

Go ahead, Mr. Glasser.

MR. GLASSER: Thank you, Your Honor. Your
Honor, I'd like to identify a proposed exhibit. This is
the Response of the NYISO to Central Hudson's First Set
of Interrogatories, Questions 1 through 5, and it's a
three-page document.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: While you're passing that
out, I just want to follow up on the last question.

As we sit here today, do you know what the

weights would be that were accorded to -- I think you
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mentioned H, I, J and K, those zones, under the
supermajority rule?

(Buechler) No, Your.Honor, because that
would be case-dependent on -- on any specific project,
and we have not yet received any appiications. We have
not received any application from NYRI or anyone else
thus far.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay. Thank you.

Central Hudson Gas & Electrig Corporation's
First Set of Inferrogatories to the NYISO has been
marked for identifiéation as Exhibit 282.

(Exhibit 282 marked for identification.)

MR. GLASSER: Thank you, Your Honor. I'a
like to now direct my questions to Mr. Corey.

BY MR. GLASSER:

Q. Mr. Corey, would you turn to page 11 of your
direct testimony, please.

Do you have that, sir? -

A. (Corey) Yes.

Q. At this portion of your testimony, I believe
you're discussing the SRIS study; is that correct?

A. (Corey) Yes, I am.

Q. Could you kindly read into the record the

sentence starting on line 5, page 11, since that's going
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to be the focus of my questioning, starting with
"However."

A. (Coreyf Stafting with "However."

"However, further analysis determined that the
overload on the 345 kv system could be mitigated by
redispatch of generation in the case, with generation
reductions at the Roesten and Dannskammer plants."

Q. Thank you. Now, I'd like to focus on the latter
part of that section, the reference to the Roesten and
Dannskammer plants.

Mr. Corey, at what voltage level do the Roesten
and Dannskammer plants connect to the grid?

A. (Corey) The Roesten plant connects at 345 kv.
Dannskammer connects at 138 kv.

Q. How or -- does the NYISO control the operation of
the 345 system?

A. (Corey) Yes. My understanding is the opera --
the ISO's operation is at the 345 kv level.

Q. Does the NYISO control the 138 system,
specifically with reference to the portion of it where

Dannskammer connects?

A. (Corey) I understand from our operations that we
do not.
Q. So in -- in the context of your sentence, you're
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addressing a situation in which there's a reduction in
the output from the Roesten and Dannskammer plants.
That's correct, isn't it?

A. (Cofey) Yes. That's in the téstimony.

Q. Yes. Since the NYISO controls the 345 system, to
the extent there's a reduction in the output.or
redispatch of the Roesten facility how is that reduction
or redispatch treated by the NYISO? Who pays the
redispatch costs?

A. (Corey) Wﬁere it's -- first, I'd like to state
that reductions in the Roesten and Dannskammer were
reductions made in the simulation model in performing
the study. They're simulations of potential operations
of the plants. 1It's not -- it's not actual operation of
the -- of those plants.

Q. Yes. And is there any more to your answer?

A. (Corey) At this point, no.

Q. Weli, let's go back to the guestion, then.

In the event that the events that were simulated
in the SRIS study were to occur and there was a
redispatch on the -- of the Roesten plant on -- by the
NYISO, who pays for that -- for the redispatch costs?
A. (Corey) That, I'm not sure. The SRIS doces not

address economic issues. And I'm not prepared to
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address questions regarding the economics of the
operations.

Q. Well, why didn't the responses to our
interrogatories say that instead of just objecting to
the interrogatory?

MR. SALTARELLI: Your Honor, object to that
question. If there were legal objections propounded,
obviously thé witness is not the person competent to
testify to that.

MR. GLASSER: Well, Your Honor, we received
an answer that, instead of providing a response, imposed
a legal objection. And my question to the witness is --
he gave a different answer here today.

And my question is: Why did we not get the
answer given today when we sent the interrogatories,
because had we gotten it -- and one of the reasons why
we sent the interrogatories was so that we wouldn't be
having these arguments, but had we gotten that answer,
we could then have sought appropriate relief through
Your Honors.

Now we find out -- having made a diligent
ingquiry and received a legal objection instead of a
substantive response, we learned for the first time that

the NYISO is not offering anyone to testify
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substantively.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, to be perfectly
honest, Mr. Glasser, I thought it was more a rhetorical
question more than anything else. The issue in thg
question that's been objected to -- or the guestion
th;t's been objected to is: Why are you giving a
different an -- why are you giving a substantive answer
today? Why are you giving an answer today that's
different than the answer that you gave in the
interrogatory?

That's what it sounded to me like your
guestion was; 1s that correct?

MR. GLASSER: That was the question.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. If the witness --
either of the witnesses know why one answer was given,
why a legal objection was raised or -- if any of the
witnesses know the answer to that question, I will allow
you to answer that guestion, but I don't want you to
speculate. I want you to testify as to what you know of
your own knowledge.

(Corey) I don't know specifically why we
objected to those particular questions. We answered
some of the questions in the interrogatory. 1I'm not

sure what the objections were.
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Mr. Glasser, I'll turmn it
back to you.
BY MR. GLASSER:

Q. Yes. The question was not: Why did we get a
different answer today? The question was not: Why did
we get a legal objection?

The quesﬁion was: Why did we get an answer today
that was not a legal objection but said the NYISO's
witnesses are not prepared to respond substantively to
the question?

That is very different from interposing a legal
objection that says we're not required to respond to
your dguestion.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: If the witness knows, you
can answer that question.

A. (Corey) I believe the basis of our objection on
the fundamental basis is the -- that the -- I'm here to
testify --

MR. SALTARELLI: Your Honor, I don't mean to
interrupt. I don't>5e1ieve that witness is qualified
to --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I think that we're
getting the answer is I don't know, although the witness

for some reason doesn't want to say I don't know.
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But are you qualified -- are either of you
qualified to testify as to the guestion that was asked
in the interrogatory?

(Corey) No for me.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Which number was that,
Mr. Glasser?

MR. GLASSER: 2A. 2A and B, to -be more
precise, Your Honor.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: éan I just ask: When did
you get this respohse? What was the date?

MR. GLASSER: Last Friday, Your Honor, the
end of the day.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Is my question clear to
the panel? Can either of you -- are either of you
qualified to respond to Interrogatory 2A or 2B in
Exhibit 282 for identification?

(Corey) Looks like in the case of 2A, it --
I -- it follows on that the -- it refers to in 2 that --
to my testimony on page 12, lines 9 through 13, where I
state that "The ISO will need to have operational
control" --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: A little slower.

(Corey) I state on page 12 of my testimony,

starting at line 9, that, The ISO will need to have
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control over the NYRI project so that the NYISO can
determine the safe -- maximum safe level of output as
necessary to avoid any adverse impact of the project on
the reliability of the New York State transmission
system, consistent with standard I -- New York ISO and
applicable transmission owner operating procedures and
practices.

So, you know, that I testified to. And
beyond that, I -- beyond that I can't in terms of any
economic impact.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: That's as to 2A. How
about 2B?

{Corey) To 2B, the first question is -- the
answer would be no, that the sentence is not intended to
identify everything that would be needed to operate the
NYRI project.

In terms of the second part of that
gquestion, I am not prepared to say what the -- to
identify wﬁat all those things would need to be done to
operate NYRI.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Is it fair to say that you
have not done a study .to identify those things?

(Corey) Yes. That would -- normally that

would occur at a later point in the interconnection
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process. It's not done in -- at this stage of the NYRI
interconnection process, they're still in the study
stage. There are three studies in the interconnection
projects. They've completed the first two studies.
They have yet to‘complete the next study.

And thé details of integration of the
project into the system generally would occur at a point
in time after the -- those studies have been completed.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you.

Mr. Glasser, that's about all I can get.

MR. GLASSER: I understand. Thank you, Your
Honor. I'll proceed.

Q. Mr. Corey, let's go back to page 11 now of your
testimony at lines 5 through 8. Here you're talking
about a study that was done, correct?

And this is a study that you're familiar with,

right?

A. (Corey) Yes.

0. And I didn't mean to give you two questions at
once. Sorry.

The study that was done did indicate, as you
state in your testimony, that to alleviate overloads it
would be necessary to redispatch Roesten and

Dannskammer; isn't that correct?
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A. (Corey) What's stated here is that in this study,
and in this case, Roesten and Dannskammer were
redispatched.

That does not -- that's intended to be
illustrative as a possible redispatch. There could be
other options, as well.

Q. Okay. And in the -- in the case of that specific

illustration where Roesten and Dannskammer are

redispatched, who dispatches -- who would redispatch
Roesten?
A. (Corey) The ISO would operate -- redispatch the

generation as necessary to operate the facilities that
are under its control and it secures.

Q. And that means the ISO would redispatch Roesten,

correct?
A. {(Corey) Yes.
Q0. And who redispatches Dannskammer?
A. (Corey) That, I'm not prepared to say.
Q. You are not prepared to say because you don't

know or you don't want to say?

A. (Corey) It's the -- that is a -- a gquestion
that's specific to system operation. And exactly the
coordination between the ISO's operation and the Central

Hudson's operation on this particular point, I -- I'm
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not qualified to say at this point.

Q. Well, let's go back, then, to Roesten. If the
ISO redispatches Roesten, who pays for the redispatch
costs? |

A. (Corey) As I stated before, the interconnection
studies do not address economic impacts and don't
evaluate economic impacts. It evaluates reliability
impacts, and that's what I'm prepared to testify to
today.

Q. How about you, Mr. Buechler?

A. ({Buechler) What's the specific question?

Q. If the ISO redispatches Roesten, who pays the
redispatch cost?

A. (Buechler) Well, I'm not an operations expert,
either. Generally speaking, except for specific
instances, redispatch costs are allocated to all loads
within the state.

Q. Now, is Central Hudson -- and this is directed

you first, Mr. Corey, just to confirm what I suspect the

answer might be, but if Central Hudson redispatches

Dannskammer, who pays those redispatch costs?

A. (Corey) I don't know.
Q. Mr. Buechlér, same gquestion to you, sir.
A. (Buechler) I think we're setting up a condition

to
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here which may not exist in real time. If you're
alluding to the ability of transmission owners to
request a specific dispatch or taking of a generating
plant out of merit for é local system condition, in such
case the redispatch costs are allocated to that -- to
that local areé.

In this hypothetical here, I'm not sure that's
what you're probosing or not.

Q. Well, I don't think you need to have any doubt,
Mr. Buechler. Central Hudson is very concerned that
it's going to end up paying fo: redispatch costs of
Dannskammer that are caused by system conditions that
will change once NYRI is operational. That's what our
concern is.

A. (Buechler) I don't -- I don't know the answer to
that question.

MR. SALTARELLI: It's not a question.

MR. GLASSER: No further gquestions, Your
Honor.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: I don't think I wrote down
everyone who indicated they had questions. So can you
just, by a show of hands, tell me again who has
questions.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: How many don't have
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questions?

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay. Thank you. I think
we're going to take our morning break at this time. If
you can be back at 11:20, please.

(Recess taken.)

(Exhibit 283 through 286 marked for
identification.)

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: On the record. I believe

staff is up next with cross-examination.

MR. BLOW; Thank you, Your Honor.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. BLOW:

Q. Mr. Corey, first just a couple 6f questions. You
stated in your testimony, I believe, that you discussed
the SRIS process in some detail, right?

A, (Corey) Yes.

Q. You would agree, wouldn't you, that the SRIS
process -- that the SRIS in this case, and in every
case, is a snapshot at the time that it was done, right?

A. (Corey) Yes, that's correct.

Q. And so you would expect that other studies and
other updates would need to be done following the
process -- the various processes -- I believe it's the

facility study next, right?
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A. (Corey) That's correct.
Q. Turning to you, Mr. Buechler. Please refer to
pages 23 and 20 -- to 25 of your direct testimony

regarding 2007 and 2008 reliability .analyses.

Let me know when you've got it.

A. Okay.

Q. Did the ISO analysis of NYRI's reliability impact
indicate that NYRI would eliminate congestion across the
central east interface?

A. (Buechler) The reliability analyses that you
referred to here, conducted as part of our comprehensive
reliability planning process, does not evaluate that
particular impact, i.e., impact on transfer capability.

However; we utilized the results of the SRIS
study to model the reliability impacts that we consider
in the planning process.

Specifically, while the SRIS study indicated
approximately a 1,200 megawatt increase in transfer
limit as stated in my testimony here, for purpose of the
CRPP, we assumed a more conservative 1,000 megawatt
increase in transfer capability for the purpose of doing
a reliability analysis.

That's my teétimony on page 24, lines 18 to 23.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Why did you pick 1,000 as
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compared to any other number?

(Buechler) There are other constraints that
may occur in that region of the system in -- in real
time, if you will. And so we felt it was more
conservative to make that assumption for the purpose of
doing the reliability adequacy analysis.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: So under some
circumstances would it be fair to say that you couldn't
take 1,200 megawatts at the bottom end of the line? 1Is
that what you're referring to?

(Buechler) Yes, there might be some
circumstance -- some specific operational circumstances.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you.

BY MR. BLOW:

Q. So you don't believe that the NYRI project
would eliminate congestion across the central east
interface, do you?

A. (Buechler) Again, we did not study that specific
question. In the reliability planning analysis, we
looked at the impact with and without the NYRI line on
statewide resource adequacy or the so-called statewide
loss of load expectation.

And what we found in both the 2007 CRP and the

2008 CRP is that there would be a marginal improvement
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in the statewide loss of load expectation with the line
in service rather than without the line.

As I mentioned in my responses to Mr. Glasser
earlier, our economic planning process, which is
designed specifically to look at congestion impacts of
facilitiés, has not yet'begun. And in any event, we
have not analyzed the NYRI project certainly at the
NYISO, to my knowledge.

Q. Please refer to pages 31 to 32 of your testimony
regarding potential future congestion analysis under
CARIS.

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. You don't believe that it's likely the NYRI
project would eliminate congestion -- that is, price
differences -- across the central east interface, do
you?

‘A. (Buechler) That would call for speculation on my
part, since we have not performed that analysis, as I
just mentioned.

Q. Let's -- what about a hypéthetical where we
talk -- just any project that goes through the CARIS
process, would it be likely that any one project would
eliminate congestion across an interface?

A. (Buechler) I --
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Q. Focusing on the word "eliminate".

A, (Buechler) Probably not.

Q. Now, isn't there a significant transfer
capability between the Hudson Valley and New England;

A. (Buechlér) I don't know the specific amount of
that at hand. There is a certain transfer capability
between New York and New -England, if that's what you're
referring to.

Q. And this tends to equilibrate prices between
Hudson Valley and New England, right?

A. (Buechler) Transactions befween those areas,
certainly. Since both areas are organized wholesale
markets, would tend to do so, yes.

Q. If the NYRI project were to reduce price
differences across the central east interface, would the
reduction be due to lower prices in Hudson Valley and
New England, or higher prices in Western New York?

A. (Buechler) My view would be probaﬁly a
combination of both.

Q. If prices in Hudson Valley and New England were
to be reduced below the cost of building and operating
new gas-fired generation, isn't it reasonable to assume
that this would discourage new generation in Hudson

Valley and New England?
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A. (Buéchler) Any reduction in congestion or
resulting in a change in prices in a given area would
certainly have an economic impact on other resources in
those areas or other resources desiring to enter into
those -- into those areas or markets.

Q. If new generation in that region were
discouraged, future load growth and/or generation
retirements would tend to increase prices, right?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Could I have that question
read, please.

(The question was read by the court
reporter.)

(Buechler) I guess my response would --
would depend upon the sequence here. Certainly rel -- I
guess relative to what would be a clarification of
request, relative to what condition would increase
prices.
BY MR. BLOW:

Q. Well, let's start -- let's just break it down.

If future load growth were to occur and
generation retirements were to occur, then that would
tend to increase prices, right?

A. (Buechler) All other things being equal, yes.

Q. Is it reasonable to assume that long-run prices
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in Hudson Valley and New England will reflect the cost
of building and operating new gas-fired generation?

A. (Buechler) Again, I guess, if you assume that the
new gas-fired generation is in that aréa or accessible
to that area, I would say ves.

Q. Now, you sponsored Exhibit JPB 8, the -draft
reliability needs assessment, right?

A. (Buechler) Correct.

Q. And that's, I believe, 281. Did the NYISO's
board of directors make any change when it considered

the draft 2009 RNA at its January 13, 2009 meeting?

A. (Buechler) Any change -- is your question, I'm
sorry -- any change from the documents included as this
exhibit.

Q. Yes.

A. (Buechler) Is that your question?

Q. Yes.

A. (Buechler) My recollection is that there were

some editorial, but'pot substantive, changes which may
have taken place between the time we submitted this
testimony and the board approval in January, but no
substantive changes.

Q. If a transmission project were proposed for

reasons of public policy, would the NYISO's planning
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process be able to evaluate the reliability and economic
implications of that project?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. Now -- but I'm -- I want to explore_that a little
bit. Right now we have a CRPP, right, and the cost
allocation process is pretty well-known?

A. (Buechler) Yes, but in these discussions so far
we've been focusing most on cost allocation under
economic planning process, so I wanted -to make that
distinction.

Q. Sure. But --

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are those cost allocations
finalized?

(Buechler) The Féderal Energy Regulatory
Commission has not made a final determination on the
NYISO's compliance filings, including certain aspects of
the economic cost allocation methodology.

Mr. Blow, a amount ago, was talking about
the reliability planning process, and those requirements
were accepted by the FERC in its October order.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: You indicated that with
regard to economic cost allocations, that the FERC has
not yet rendered a decision on the NYISO filing.

Am I right about that.
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(Buechler) Not a final decision.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Not a final decision.

When was that NYISO filing? Was it the
filing last September?

(Buechler) No, Your Honor. The filing in
which the economic planning process, including the cost
allocation provisions, was made on December 7th of 2007.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: So, you're suggesting --
so FERC has not finally resolved a matter of cost
allocation in a year and four months; is that correct?

(Buechler) That's correct.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Oh, to have the
availability of time that's available in Washington.

Thank you. Go ahead, Mr. Blow.

MR. BLOW: Thank you.

BY MR. BLOW:

Q. "All right. So let me just understand the -- so
there, there are -- under the ISO process, there are two
potential, as I understand it -- and correct me if I'm
wrong -- two potential cost allocation scenarios: One

for the CRPP and one for the CARIS process, right?

A. (Buechler) Correct.
Q. One being reliability, the other being economics?

A. (Buechler) Correct.
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Q. But there's been testimony in this proceeding,
and I think I read.a Commission order recently, that in
'07 E something or other, was issued in February of --
February 18 this year that talked about other policy
considerations and so on.

If the Commission were to approve a project based
on other policy considerations, would that project
develop or have to go through the ISO to get to --
through one of those two cost allocation processes?

A. (Buechler) The specific Public Service Commission
policy statement that I belive you're referring to does
have a very direct bearing on projects that may arise
from thé NYISO's comprehensive reliability planning
process.

Without going into a great deal of detail, unless
you'd like some further explanation, one of the outcomes
of that process could be that in -- because of the lack
of market-based solutions or the lack of timely.
markgt—based solutions, the NYISO could request a
transmission owner to submit what's called in our
parlance a regulated backstop solution to the Public
Service Commission for its consideration.

As part of.that process, other developers, other

projects may also appear before the Public Service
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Commission for consideration; The February 18 policy
statement specifically deals with the policies that the
Commission and its staff would be using in that event.
So that is very directly tied to a potential
regulated -- the need for a potential regulated solution

under our reliability planning process.

Q. Okay. Well, let me ask you, I guess, a more
general question. Would a -- if a developer -- could a
developer decide that it -- decide not to proceed

through one of the cost allocation process doors, or
whatever you want to call it, at the NYISO?

If there were another cost allocation method, say
the Public Service Commission granted a certificate with
a specific cost allocation method in it for some reason
or other, it -- would you -- do you think that -- well,
is it your understanding that the developer is required
to go through one of the two brocesses at the ISQ?

A, (Buechler) The only requirement that we currently
have in our planning process is that a transmission
owner -- and in our parlance again, a responsible
transmission owner -- will proceed with licensing and
developing a project if the NYISO's reliability planning
brocess determines that a regulated solution is needed.

A non-transmission owner, if you will, does not
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have any obligation to enter into the NYISO's either
reliability or ecoﬁomic planning process.

Q. Are you aware that NYRI's Lesser/Puga panel
included, as their Exhibit JAL/JNP 5, the NYISO's
November 2008 white paper entitled "Transmission
Expansion in New York State"?

A. (Buechlexr) I was not'aware of that, no.

Q. But I am correct, am I not, that you were NYISO's
lead author of tﬁat paper?

A. (Buechler) I was one of the NYISO staff, along
with outside consultants retained ﬁo prepare that paper,
yes.

Q. Did this white paper provide a benefit cost study
of NYRI or any other transmission project? |

A. (Buechler) No.

Q. Did this paper determine that NYRI is needed in

order to satisfy the state's public policy goals?

A. (Buechler) No.
Q. Did this paper recommend construction of NYRI?
A. (Buechler) No.

Q. Regarding your testimony at page 9, lines 8
through 16, your direct testimony, has the NYISO
prepared any benefit cost study of NYRI?

A. (Buechler) Not to my knowledge.
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Q. Does the NYISO believe that NYRI is needed in
order to satisfy the state's public policy goals, e.g.,
development of renewables? |

A. (Buechler) I have no opinion on that -- on the
question.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Let me ask -- excuse me,
Mr. Blow.

Allegations have been made on this record
that wind -- upstaté wind power is constrained upstate.

Can you explain to me what that means or
what your understanding of that is? Is it bottled up?
And if so,.how is it bot;led ﬁp? At what voltage level?

(Buechler) I certainly have some general
knowledge of that, Your Honor, not having conducted any
studies myself.

The preponderance of wind projects, both

currently in service and proposed, as I think is

well-known, are in the northern and western parts of the
state.

The typical power flow in the state, even
prior to those projects, is in a west to east and a
north to south direction, largely because the -- the
major hydro projects and significant nuclear resources

and coal resources are located in those northern and
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western portions of the state.

The NYISO is in the process of conducting an
analysis, has bgen working with the staff of the Public
Service Commission in this respect, and thé transmission

)

owners as well, to explore the degree to which

additional renewables, additional wind in those areas

might be constrained to deliver their energy -- their
full output at -- during all hours of the year. So to
that extent I know we're -- that we are involved in

looking at that issue.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are they currently
constrained? Are the existing wind sources currently
constrained?

{Buechler) To my knowledge, thefe have only
been very rare instances where the output of existing
units have been constrained. And at least the instances
that I'm aware of took place because of a contingency on
a system or a facility being out of service, for
example.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: I've heard anecdotally --
and I do not know the truth of this -- there are timeé
when the Athens natural gas plant has to be backed down
in order to take the wind that's coming off of the --

off of the windmills. Is that true?
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(Buechler) I don'f have any knowledge of
that, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: In your opinion, could the
existing transmission system, as it exists today in
New York, handle -- I'll explain what I mean by handle
in a second -- but handle the output of the wind
projects that are currently in the NYISO}S qﬁeue?

And what I mean by handle, is can the
transmission system deliver that power around the state,
or will it be, as people have alleged in the record,
bottled up? |

(Buechler) My belief is that if all the wind
energy that's in the queue is developed, that there is
not sufficient4transmission to allow that to operate and
deliver its energy 867 hours of the year.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Would your opinion be the
same if I asked you hypothetically if we were to import
a thousand megawatts of additional power from Canada?
Would your answer be the same with regard to the
adequacy of the system?

(Buechler) I haven't done that study, but
consistent with the location or the likely location of
the input of that power, basically in the north apd/or

west, they would at some point face the same types of
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limitations.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Would the Messina to Marcy
line, as it currently exists, be able to handle another
thousand megawatts, if you know?

(éuechler) I don't -- I don't know the
answer to that question.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Mr. Blow.

MR. BLOW: Thank you.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And thank you.

MR. BLOW: No problem.

BY MR. BLOW:

Q. Does the NYISO recommend construction of NYRI?
A. . (Buechler) No. We have taken no position on
that -- on that question.

Q. Have any NYISO white papers made the
determinations, as I've just asked you about, in support
of a project or -- or recommending the projects take --
project developers take certain actions?

A; (Buechler) The NYiSO conducts its evaluations, if
you will, of proposed projects, be they transmission,
generation, or demand response resources, in accordance
with the requirements of our tariffs, which look --
which include interconnection requirements, as has been

talked about here, which are based upon reliability --
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upon meeting all applicable reliability requirements.

We also conduct our comprehensive reliability
planning processvin accordance with those same criteria
and will be conducting shortly the economic planning
process. Throughout those processes the NYISO -- thg
NYISO processes and tariffs provide explicit preference
in the planning process to market-based solutions.

That being said, the NYISO does not take any
position for or against any specific project, but rather
fulfills those responsibilities and réports our
findings.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Mr. Buechler, when do you
expect this process that you, I think, referred to as
understanding the CARIS process, when do you expect thaf
to be completed? |

(Buechler) Well, Your Honor, like any good
planning process, it will probgbly never be completed.
Our schedule for the -- for the initial implementation
is May to June of this year.

And the initial implementation will be the
first step, whicﬁ is called the study phase, where in
conjunction with our stakeholders we will identify,
based upon historic and projected congestion, certain

areas of the system that will be studied to determine
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potential mitigation to that -- to that congestion.

That part of the process is scheduled for
completion by the end of this year. So, that's where it
stands.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: So do you know, if.I asked
you for calendar year 2008, what the cost of congestion
was in the state of New York? Dé you have that number
now? Sounds like you are going to calculate that number
in some fasﬁion in the futufe, but do you have it now?

(Buechler) We have been -- the NYISO has
developed a methodology over five years ago to track and
report histdric congestion on the system. We étill - -
last time I looked, we still hadn't completed the
analysis for 2008, but we do have a verj detailed
reporting of congestion on the system and including
constrained elements for the years from 2003 to 2007'on
our website.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM; You also mentioned a
couple of\minutes ago a stuay that_you were working in
conjunction with staff to look at, I think, wind
generation impacts on the transmission system?

{Buechler) Yes.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And when is that study

supposed to be done?
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(Buechler) That's due for completion in
about ‘a month from now. I don't have an exact date.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are you aware of any
transmiééioh studies, other than that study, that are
qurrently in process in New York?

(Buéchler) Yes. I believe that'Energy Eést
has been chargea with performing such an analysis on
their local transmission system as part of a Commission
order.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are you aware of any other
transmission studies being done by the transmission
owners and/or NYPA? |

(Buechler) Yes, I -- yes, I'm aware of a
number of other studies being done, but I guess I
thought>your guestion was specifically focused on wind
gen -- deliverabiligy of wind generation.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Well, actually, the prior
gquestion was. I apologize for that.

(Buechler) Okay. Could you restate, then,
your second question was.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yeah, let me restate.

My understanding is there are a number of
transmission studies that are currently underway that

are not completed that are scheduled to be completed at
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some point in time in the next six to nine months.

Could you give me a list of projects that
would fall in that category. I think you gave me one,
the NYSEG one.’ |

(Buechler) I will try. Studies that I'm
aware of -- |

| JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Actually, you gave me two.
I don't mean to be misleading, but the one that you're
working with staff on wind, and then you also mentioned
NYSEG.

{Buechler) Yes. If we broaden that question
then to other transmission studies ongoing in the state,
the New York State transmissioﬁ owners, with the
participation and cooperation of the NYISO, have just-
begun a long-range assessment of the transmission system
in New York State,'léoking out over a 20-year period,
beginning with the database, if you will, or the ﬁodel
utilized in the NYISO's comprehensive reliability
planning process.

But this study will be looking at things
from a condition assessment, i.e., a physical condition
assessment of the system, as well as reliability and
potentially economic impacts, but that study has just

recently gotten off the ground in the past month.
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Do you know what the
schedule is for completing it?

(Buechler) Actually, I do not. The
schedule, aé I understand it, is under reevaluation
because it just took longer than expected to retain a
consultant and to begin this. I believe the
transmission owners are currently reevaluating the
schedﬁle.

The prior schedule was to have at least the
first two phases of that study completed by the end
of -- well, by -- by the first quarter of next year,
actually, so I suspect it's been moved out a bit.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are there any other
studies you're aware of?

(Buechler) Yes. The New York City Economic
Development‘Corporation had commissioned a study and
retained a consultant to look specifically at potential
transmission alternatives for supply to New York City.
NYISO has had an advisory role in that study.

I believe a draft is to be released within
the next several months but, again, I don't have a
specific schedule on that one, either.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: You would expect that to

be in the third or fourth quarter of the year as a final
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document?

(Buechler) I believe that's what -- what the
current schedule is,.and they're pretty much on it last
I heard.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. Any others?

(Buechler) The state energy planninglprocess
is certainly doing -- performing analyses of the
electric sysfem. I don't know whether I would call it
in the first instance a transmission study, but
certainly the transmission system is being modelled as
part of that process.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And are you aware of the
timing currently contemplated for that energy plan?

(Buechler) Well, my understanding is that -
the draft they -- has been -- has been moved to I
believe it's July 15th. Maybe others in this room could
answer that better. But the final report due in
mid-October, I believe.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Thank you.

Mr. Blow.

MR. BLOW: No further gquestions, Your Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Did I scare you from the
rest of your questions, Mr. Blow?

MR. BLOW: No. No. .I was finished.
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Okay. I just want to
double-check.

Mr. Belsitb, you had no questions?

MR. BELSITO: That is correct.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And LIPA jumped in to
volunteer to go next, actually.

| So, please proceed.

MR. LANIADO: Thank you.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. LANIADO:

Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Buechler. i have a couple of
questions for Mr. Buechler.

If we can go to page 29 of your prefiled
testimony, direct?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. And if you look at line 20, aﬁd I'm going to be
talking about the CARIS process. You see the words
there, "While the initial eligibility for regulated cost
recovery will be determined on the basis of the NYCAY
production cost savings"?

A. (Buechler) Yes.

Q. Am I correct that under the NYISO tariffs -- and
I'm referring to what's been marked as Exhibit 274, but

it's Section 15.3 -- that the benefit metric is the
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present value of the annual NYCAY prdduction cost
savings that would result from the implementation of a
proposed project over a ten-year period?

A. (Buechler) Yes, that's correct.

Q. And if I go to E of that same section, it says,
"To be eligible for cost allocation and recovery under
this Attachment Y."

Do you see that?

A. {Buechler) Yes.

Q. So am I correct to interpret the tariffs that in
order to be eligible, that the -- you first have to pass
the production cost savings criteria?

A. (Buechler) That's the initial threshold for
eligibility, yes. |

Q. You don't pass it, you don't -- there's no cost
allocation procedures that follow thqt?

A. (Buechler) That's correct.

MR. LANIADO: Okay. Your Honor, I would
like to have a document marked for identification. It's
the response by NYISO of Mr. Buechler to LIPA 18. It's
a one-page document.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: When we get our copy, it
will be marked for identification as Exhibit 284. We

did skip a number, just in case you're wondering.
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" Wwe can just go to the middle of the response where you

BY MR. LANIADO:

Q. Mr. Buechler, do you ﬁow have 280 -- Exhibit 284
before you?

A. (Buechler) Yes, I do.

Q. And I'd like to go to Response B, where -- and if

are asking a question -- you are answering a question as
to the likelihood of using this Article VII record in
the CARIS process.

And if I go one, two, three, four, five -- about
five or six lines down into the response, you say that
"It does not appear likely that the record in this
proceeding” -- which is the Article VII proceeding --
"would be useful for the calculation of LBMP savings."

Do you see that?

A. (Buechler) Yes.
Q. Is it my understanding -- and I believe you may
have covered this with Mr. Glasser -- that NYISO will be

conducting its own process and will not be relying upon
this record? |
A. (Buechler) Yes. That's correct.
MR. LANIADO: No further questions, Your
Honor.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Could I ask the reporter
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to read that last question, please.

(The question was read by the court
reporter.)

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Are you suggesting that
there's no documents and no evidence in this record that
the ISO would cénsider?

(Buechler) No, I'm not -- I was not, Your
Honor. And I guess I should preface that with the
comment I had made earlier that -- to Mr. Glasser that
the NYISO would not be conducting any economic planning
evaluation of the NYRI project on its own, but only in
the event that the developer came to the NYISO desiring
cost recovery under our tariff. So, I just wanted that
to be on the record once again.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And assuming relevance and
materiality and those kinds of things, facts and
information and data from this case would be considered
by the ISO, assuming it's relevant and material?

(Buechler) Well, as I mentioned before --
several times before, that -- that we have to abide by
the requirements of our tariffs in conducting these
analyses, and that there may well be different
assumptions and inputs used for the economic planning

analysis.
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It's certainly possible that some of the

information that may be brought out or discussed in this

proceeding may be relevant,
would be that that information
be brought specifically to our
same -- those same questions.

| So the NYISO would

information derived here would

our evaluation.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM:

(Buechler)
certainly.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM:
only point.

JUDGE PHILLIPS:

next?
Ah, good, DEC.
MR. LITTLE: Thank you, Your Honor.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. LITTLE:
Q. On that topic, Mr. Buechler, the economic

planning process, not being indoctrinated in the
particulars of the ISO responsibilities I think I know

the answer to this question but couldn't go very far

but the NYISO intention

But it could be?

But it could be.

Okay.

-Any more volunteers to go

would be -- would have to

process to address those

not simply assume that

be used as an input to

Could be,

I guess that's my
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without asking you first.

Would that economic planning process require that
NYRI supply the costs of the alternatives to its
projects?

A. (Buechler) No, it does not. Our process does not
require that.

Q. And I notice that your testimony also -- I'm on
page 32 of your testimony, and at line 9 you make
reference to a-demonstration to the -- to FERC, the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and it's
apparently. -- I-don't mean to put words in your mouth,
but you used the word reasonable, and I'll call this a
reasonableness test for purposes of just conversation.

Do you know whether that test would require NYRI
dr any applicant to describe the costs of the
alternatives to its project?

A. I don't specifically know that.

MR.'LITTLE: All right. Thank you.

I don't have any further questions, Your
Honor.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay. I think we only have
NYPA and NYRI left; is that correct? Do either one of
You want to go next?

MS. BARISH-STRAUS: I have about a half
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hour. I don't know if you would like me to start or
take a break.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: No. You can go ahead.
Piease proceed.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MS. BARISH-STRAUS:

Q. Mr. Corey, I'm going to direct my -- first my
qgestions to you and your direct testimony. On pages 6
fo 8 of your testimony you described the NYISO's
interconnection process and explain how a new facility
can reliably interconnect'with the New York State
transmission system.

As I understand it, there are up to three
interconnection studies required for a proposed project
under the large facility interconnection procedures, the
LFIP: The interconnection feasibility study, the SRIS
and the class year study; is that correct?

A. (Corey) Yes, that's correct.

Q. And it is my understanding that the NYISO board
upheld the approval of the NYRI SRIS in August 2008 when
it denied the appeal of Con Edison and O&R; is that
correct?

A. (Corey) Yes.

Q. And in your testimony you state that NYRI is
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qualified to be a member of the class year 2009, the
study for which is scheduled to commence on March 1,
2009; is that correct?

A. (Corey) Yes.,

Q. Do you know if that study has commenced yet for
class year 2009:by NYRI?

A. (Corey) That class year study overall has

commenced. There are the -- we're in the process of
executing the necessary agreements to -- between the
parties. We need to execute agreements -- study

agreements with each of the interconnection projects
that are in thg class.

That's still in process, so we're still somewhat
in a preliminary stage. The éctua1~studies h%ven't
really gotten underway, but the process of preparing for
the studies is underway.

Q. And when do you anticipate that studies will be

complete?
A. (Corey) For the class 2009, there are quite a few
variables in determinihg when that may be completed. I

would estimate that that would be completed in fall 2010
approximately.
Q. Okay. And what about the interconnection

feasibility study, has that taken place yet?
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A. (Corey) Yes, it has.

Q. Does that go before the SRIS and that's
completed?

A. (Corey) Yes. The interconnection feasibility
study is the first study, and that was completed.

Q. Do you know the date it was completed?

A. (Corey) Yeah. That was in June 2006.

Q. Okay. Thank you.

Is it correct that your assessment of the SRIS
with respect to NYRI is that NYRI meets the NYISO
minimum interconnection standard and can be
interconnected and operated within all the applicable
reliability criteria?

A. (Corey) Yes.

Q. Okay. Are you familiar with the NYISO board of

directors' decision that I referenced a few minutes ago

in which they upheld the SRIS?

A. (Corey) Yes. That was a sponsored exhibit.

MS. BARISH-STRAUS: Your Honor, I would like

to put this -- it's sponsored. Does that mean it's

already in?

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Yes, I think that's what

the witness meant.

MS. BARISH-STRAUS: Okay.
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JUDGE STOCKHOLM: Is this one of your
exhibits, sir?

(Corey) Yes, it is.

MS. BARISH-STRAUS: Okay. So I will -- I
don't know what number it is, but I'm going to be
referring to it. |

JUDGE PHILLIPS: What number was it for you,
Mr. Corey?

(Corey) I believe it's SLC 4.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: Okay. If that's the
nﬁmber --

(Corey) Exhibit 273 is what we have written
down.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: 'Oh, then that was SLC 5;
is that correct?

(Corey) No, it should be SLC 4.

JUDGE PHILLIPS: No. SLC 4 has been marked
as 272,

(Corey) Oh. Okay. Then I stand corrected
on the exhibit number.

MS. BARISH-STRAUS: Okay. Thank you, Your
Honor.

BY MS. BARISH-STRAUS:

Q. Referring to Exhibit 272, would you agree with
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the statement by the board of directors in their
decision in this exhibit that the SRIS is a preliminary
non-binding study with a limited scope?

A. (Corey) Yes.

Q. Would you also agree that with the words in the
statement of this decision that it is not the final
study of the impact of a project on the reliability of a
transmission system?

A. (Corey) Excuse me. Can you repeat that again,
please.

Q. Would you also agfee with the statement that it
is not the final study of the impact of a project on the
reliability of the transmission system?

A. (Corey) Yes, i would.

Q. And would you also agree with the statement that
the interconnection facilit& study, which will be
performed after the appréval of the NYRI SRIS, will
provide a detailed comprehensive anai&éis of the overall

system performance, the conclusion of the NYRI project,

and all other class year projects; is that true?

A. (Corey) Yes.
Q. So maybe you could help me understand the
statement you made previously wherein you stated that

the interconnection facilities study has already been
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completed and that it was the first step.

Because as I unde;stand this decision, it is
;fating that the interconnection facility study will be
performed after the approval of the SRIS and will
provide a detailed comprehensive analysis of the overall
system performance with inclusion of phe NYRI'project
and all other class year projects.

If I'm correct, you stated that the NYRI class

year project will not be done until -- was it 2012 or
20107

A. (Corey) I thought I éaid 2010.

Q. - So how -- maybe>you could explain the difference

in what you stated about this interconnection facility
study and what I'm reading in this decision.

A. (Corey) Well, I may have heard incorrectly or
misstated béfore. The interconnection feasibility study
is the first study of the process. And that is the
study that was cdmpleted.

. The facility study, which is the -- synonymous
with the class year study, has yet to be completed.
JUDGE STOCKHOLM: And won't be completed
until 2010°?
(Corey) That was my estimation, yeah.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: So we're not going to
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know what the -- if we rely strictly on the ISO's
process, we're not going to know what the reliability
impacts and the economic impacts of this project are
until 2010°?

(Corey) well, let me start with the inter --
the facility study will evaluate and reevaluate the
reliability impacts of interconnection of the NYRI
project. And we will evaluate the -- what system
upgrade facilities will be needed.

However, that study will nbt eyaluate the
economic benefits, if you will. That won't include an
economic analysis of the NYRI project in a planning
sense.

JUDGE STOCKHOLM: So would.the answer to the
economics be later than 20107 -

(Corey) As I -- I believe said before, Your
Honor, the economic planning process -- there is no
obligation for any entity to come to the NYISO for
evaluation of the economic planning process. If NYRI --
if and when NYRI chooses to do so, we will evaluate the
project in accordance with that process.

JHowever, as I also said, we're still getting
that process up and running.  We would not anticipate

being in a position to evaluate a specific project until
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the phase one study work is completed, which I mentioned
before is scheduled for the end of this year. Because
we would, obviously, need those same models and inputs
and so forth developed to analyze a specific project as
well<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>